From:l (bY7)HC) |<f0=EXCHANGELABS,"OU=EXCHANGEADMINISTRATIVEGROUP

B NC) |
_

To: "Conlon, Paul </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT}/cn=Recipients/cn=bb38913146504¢409ec131657444fceb-Paul Conlon>"

Subject: FW: American Greed
Date: 2015/01/26 16:32:11
Priority: Normal

Type: Note

Paul,
I just found one other email re: TBW. Not sure 1f this should have been included.

From: Connolly, Charles (USAVAE) [mailto:Charles.Connolly(@usdoj.gov]
Sent: Thursday, July 12, 2012 7:05 PM

To: [ GG, ][BXT]

Cec: Stokes, Patrick (CRM); Nathanson, Paul (USAVAE); Zink, Robert (CRM)
Subjeet: RE: American Greed

No kidding, speaking of which, we received a duty call today from[  ®XNC)  fwho
claimed that he had information related to the Lee Farkas fraud case. Could you call him
back (or have an agent reach out to him) and see what he has to say?

Numberis| ®@©C) |

From: | (B)(7)(C) |[EI]] (BITHC) |

Sent: Thursday, July 12, 2012 2:07 PM

To: Nathanson, Paul (USAVAE); Connolly, Charles (USAVAE); Stokes, Patrick (CRM)
Subject: American Greed

So who is handling thg (b)(7)XC) falsc statement casc?

6| OGS

Special Agent

Federal Tousing Finance Agency- O1G
Investigations Division

[ ©®@©e |

Confidentiality Notice: The information in this cmatl and any attachments may be
confidential or privileged under applicable law, or otherwisc protected from disclosure to
anyone other than the intended recipient(s). Any use, distribution, or copying of this
email, including any of its contents or attachments by any person other than the intended
rccipicnt, or for any purposc other than its intended usc, is strictly prohibited. If you
belicve you reecived this email in crror, pleasc permanently delete it and any
attachments, and do not save, copy, disclose, or rely on any part of the information.



Plcase call the OIG at 202-730-4949 if you have any questions or to Iet us know you
received this email in error.

O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=7263601007844FA4870348B5440COSFF-DAVID

(BYTHE)—

MODAK>

Recipient: "Conlon, Paul <{o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=bb38913146504c409ec131657444fceb-Paul Conlon:>"

Sent Date: 2015/01/26 16:32:08
Delivered Date: 2015/01/26 16:32:11



From: Emerzian, Peter </0=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/{CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=E5F50330FF35406FOFB12C708E955AEB-PETER
EMERZ >

To:| (BY7)C) }io=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=b8169¢3529ea423d9be 960615990721 (b)(7)(C)
"Conlon, Paul <fo=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT }/cn=Recipients/cn=bb38913146504c409ec13 1657444fceb-Paul Conlon >";
"Febles, Rene </o=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=4dcab12235064540ac7ad5 1bfe748bcf-Rene Febles "

Subject: FW: Systemic Implication Report (SIR): TBW-Colonial Investigation Lessons Learned, SIR No:
SIR-2014-0013, OIG Case No: 1-11-0010

Date: 2014/08/21 13:31:42
Priority: Normal
Type: Note

Sent from my Windows Phone

Froml (BU7HC)
Sent: 8/21/2014 1:18 PM

To: Melvin L. Watt

Ce: eric.stein@fhfa.gov; John.Major@FHFA.gov; 'Bob.Ryan@fhfa.gov'; Emerzian, Peter

Subject: Systemic Implication Report {SIR): TBW-Colonial Investigation Lessons Learned, SIR No:
SIR-2014-0013, OI1G Case No: 1-11-0010

Good Morning Director Watt,

On bchalf of Michacl P. Stephens, the attached memorandum, Systemic Implication
Report (SIR): TBW-Colonial Investigation Lessons Learned, SIR No: SIR-2014-0013,
OIG Case No: 1-11-0010, 1s submitled for your review and action.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Mr. Stephens on (202) 730-0882.
Best

(b)7HC)

Federal Heousing Finance Agency | Office of the [nspector General
Des Main 202.730.0881 Cel]l (BY7HC)
o | BXTHO)

b)(7)C
7 t of Columbia and Maryland

Non-Public

Sender: Emerzian, Peter </0=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT }/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=E5F50330FF35406F5FB12C708EQ59AEB-PETER
EMERZ >

Recipient:| (b){(7){C) Ffo=ExchangelLabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group

YDIBOH PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=b8169¢3 529ea423d9be96016f 599072  (b)(7)(C)

"Conlon, Paul </o=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=bb38913146504c409ec131657444fceb-Paul Conlon>";
"Febles, Rene </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=4dcab12235064540ac7ad5 1bfe748bcf-Rene Febles >"

Sent Date: 2014/08/21 13:30:48




Deliveraed Date: 2014/08/21 13:31:42



From: Conlon, Paul </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GRDUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=BB38913146504C409EC131657444FCEB-PAUL
CONLON=>

To:| _(BI7)C) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

(FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=8e7806771e6a4a00bdcd5eca75864a81] (B 7)(C)

CC| (b)7)C) p=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

'OLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=b05df298ecad4835a4689bfa23232f4  (b)(7)(C)
Subject: RE; T8W CASE

Date: 2014/07/29 04:48:09
Priority: Normal

Type: Note

The case is open pending all appeals.

We could indeed complete the case now that we can do that {that wasn't an option before).
P
Sent from my Windows Phone

From: Acevedo, Olga
Sent: 7/28/2014 1:46 PM

To: Conlon, Paul

I

CC:l (bU7)C)
Subject: SE

(B)7)(C) |

O 1n doind-. basc review of Lec Farkas — (b)(5)
(BXTHC) bY5) | =
Ab)7NE)

(b)(5).(b)TNE)
Flease advise thanks,
Olga E. Acevedo, Special Agent in Charge
Officc of Investigations
FHFA OIG
400 7" Street SW
Washington DC 20024

®)7ycy | cell
- desk

(b)7)C)

(b)(5),(L)7)E)

g on-Public Restricted

Confidentiality Notice: The information contained in this e-mail and any attachments
may be confidential or privileged under applicable law, or otherwise may be protected
from disclosure to anyone other than the intended recipient(s). Any use, distribution, or
copying of this c-mail, including any of its contents or attachments by any person other
than the intended recipient, or for any purpose other than its intended use, 15 strictly



prohibited. If you believe you have reeeived this c-mail in crror, permancntly delete the
e-mail and any attachments; and do not save, copy, disclose, or use any part of the
information contained therein. Call the sender if you have questions.

Sender: Conlon, Paul </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GRDUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/{CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=BB3B%13146504C409EC131657444FCEB-PAUL
CONLON=

Recipient: "Acevedo, Olga </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=8e7806771ebadallbdcd5eca’5864a81-0Olga
Aceved>";

(BYTHC) o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
ass PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=b05df298ecad4835a4689fbfa23232f4 (b} 7){C)
Sent Date: 2014/07/29 04:48:07
Delivered Date: 2014/07/29 04:48:09



From: Acevedo, Olga </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT yCN=RECIPIENTS/CN=8E7806771E6 A4AQ0BDCASECA7EEH4AB1-0LGA
ACEVED>

To: "Conlon, Paul </o=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=bbh38913146504¢409ec 13165 7444fceb-Paul Conlon>"

cq (b)}{7)C) }/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
YLLBOH

PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=b05df298eca94835a4689fbfa23232f84 (b){(7)(C)
Subject: RE; T8W CASE
Date: 2014/07/29 14:30:35
Priority: Normal
Type: Note

Thank vou Paul (?g{) and 1 will now discuss.

Enjoy vour time eIl

Olga . Acevedo. Special Agent in Charge
Ofhce of Investigations

[FTIFA OIG

400 77 Streetr SW

Washington DC 20021

(BXTHC) cell

desk
BYTNC)

Non-Public Restricted

Confidentiality Notice: The information contained in this e-mail and any
attachments may be confidential or privileged under applicable law, or otherwise
may be protected from disclosure to anyone other than the intended recipient(s).
Any use, distribution, or copying of this e-mail, including any of its contents or
attachments by any person other than the intended recipient, or for any purpose
other than its intended use, is strictly prohibited. If you believe you have received
this e-mail in error, permanently delete the e-mail and any attachments; and do
not save, copy, disclose, or use any part of the information contained therein.
Call the sender if you have questions.

From: Cpnlon, Paul

? (b)(?)(C) 29, 2014 4:48 AM

Cc: Meyer, Kan
Subject: RE: TBW CASE
The casc is open pending all appeals.

We could indeed coniplete the case now that we can do that (that wasn't an option
before).

P

Sent from my Windows Phone



From: Accvedo, Olpa
Sent: 7/28/2014 1:46 PM
To: Conlon, Paul
Cel BUINC)
Subject: TBW CASE

Peter | (b)(7)(C) |
In doind @173¢) lase review of Lee Farkas - (b)(5)
(b)5) I (0)(5).()7)E)
(b)(5),(b)(7)(E)
(b)(5),(b)7)E) [ ®)).0x7E)
(0)(5),(B)(7)(E) [

Plcasc advisc — thanks,

Olga E. Acevedo, Special Agent in Charge
Office of Investigations

FHEA OIG

400 70 Street SW

Washington DC 20024

- cell
b7 C
(bX7)HC) | desk

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

Sender: Acevedo, Olga </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=8E7806771EGA4AQOBDC45ECATS864A81-0OLGA

ACEVED>

Recipient: "Conlon, Paul <fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=bb38913146504¢c409ec131657444fceb-Paul Conlon>";
bY7)(C |:fo=ExchangeLabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group

(FYDIBOHF 235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=b05df208ecag4835a4689ffa232326] (b)(7)(C)

Sent Date: 2014/07/29 14:30:29
Delivered Date: 2014/07/29 14:30:35



FY1

Sig-DIG

From: Emerzian, Peter </0=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=E5F50330FF35406FIFB12C708EISSAEB-PETER
EMERZ >

To: "Febles, Rene </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
DIROH BDL T}/ cn=Recipients/cn=4dcat12235064540ac7ad51bfe748bcf-Rene Febles>";
(bY7)HC) |o=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
YDIBOH PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=hbB8169c3529¢a423d9hed60f6r599072 (b)(7HC) |
L (RNHFNL) k/o=Fxchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=510d59641615427d8a264a90c9f477be{(B) (7]

(b)(T)(C) - jo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
TFYDIBORF235PDLT )/cn=Recipients/cn=eQ4fc7ef76a3454bb5 1 4da3 1fbeabe7 1 (BY(7)(C) |';
"Conlon, Paul <fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=bb38913146504¢400ec 1 31657 444fceb-Paul Conlon>"

Subject: FW: OIG Referral for Suspended Counterparty Designation
Date: 2014/01/30 11:48:12

Priority: Normal
Type: Note

Peter Emerzian New

From: | (B)(7)(C)

Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2014 11:10 AM

To: ‘alfred. pollard@fhfa.gov’

Cc: Saddler, Bryan; Emerzian, Peter; Baker, Brian; Baker, Mark
Subject: OIG Referral for Suspended Counterparty Designation

Alfred,

Good morning, please find attached to this c-mail the O1Gs referral of former Colonial
Bank operativns supervisor Ms. Teresa Kelly tor potential designation as a suspended
counterparty. Supporting materials arc also attached. If you have any questions. please
let me know.

Thanks,
Mark

Muark D. Baker

Assistant Chicf Counscl

Office of the Inspector {General,
Federal Housing Finance Agency
400 7th Street SW

Washington, D.C. 20024

QO

(b)7HC)




£l oo |

| (BYTHC) |
This e-mail communication (including any attachments) may contain legally privileged
and/or confidential information mcant solcly for the intended recipient. If you arce not the
intended recipient, you should immediately stop reading this message and delcete it from
your system. Any unauthorized reading, distribution, copying or other use of this

comimunication or its attachments is strictly prohibited.

Sender: Emerzian, Peter </Q=EXCHANGELABS/QU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=ESF50330FF35406FOFB12C708E959AEB-PETER
EMERZ >
Recipient: "Febles, Rene </o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
DLT)fcnzRecipientsfcn:4dca612235064540ac7ad5 1bfe748bcf-Rene Febles>",
o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

f FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=bB169¢3 529ea423d9be960f6f 5f99072] (b)(7)(C)

Jo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
FYDIBOHF23SPDLT )/cn=Recipients/cn=510d596416 15427d8a264a90c9f477b6-m
| {Ei{ 5 EEEE |,ro=ExchangeLabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT }/cn=Recipients/cn=e04fc7ef76a3454bbS14da3 1fbcabe71{  (b)(7)(C)

"Conlon, Paul </o=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)}/cn=Recipients/cn=bb38913146504c409ec13 1657444fceb-Paul Conlon ="

Sent Date: 2014/01/30 11:48:01
Delivered Date: 2014/01/30 11:48:12




Case 1:11-cr-00119-LMB Document 4 Filed 03/16/11 Page 1 of 4 PagelD# 5

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE MAR | 6 201)

EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA

letﬂti__ U e Lue]
P ~ Vel ;

R

Alexandria Division

)
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA )
) Case No. L:1ICRII9
V. )
) 18 U.S.C. § 371 (Conspiracy)
TERESA KELLY, )
)
Defendant. )

CRIMINAL INFORMATION
THE UNITED STATES CHARGES THAT:

Count |
(Conspiracy to Commit Bank Fraud, Wire Fraud, and Securities Fraud)

1. From in or about 2002 through in or about August 2009, in the Eastern District of
Virginia and elsewhere, the defendant
TERESA KELLY
did knowingly and intentionally combine, conspire, confederate, and agree with others known
and unknown to commit certain offenses against the United States, namely:
a. bank fraud, that is, to knowingly and intentionally execute a scheme and
artifice to defraud a financial institution, and to obtain any of the moneys, funds, credits,
assets, securities, and other property owned by, and under the custody and control of, a
financial institution, by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses,
representations, and promises, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, § 1344;
b. wire fraud, that is, having knowingly and intentionally devised and

intending to devise a scheme and artifice to defraud a financial institution, and for



Case 1:11-cr-00119-LMB Document 4 Filed 03/16/11 Page 2 of 4 PagelD# 6

obtaining money and property by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses,
representations, and promises, to transmit and cause to be transmitted, by means of wire
communication in interstate commerce, writings, signs, signals, pictures, and sounds for
the purpose of executing such scheme and artifice, in violation of Title 18, United States
Code, § 1343; and,

c. securities fraud, that is, to knowingly and intentionally execute a scheme
and artifice to defraud any person in connection with any security of an issuer with a
class of securities registered under § 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Title 15,
United States Code, § 781), in violation of Title 18, United States Code, § 1348.

2, Among the manner and means by which defendant KELLY and others would and
did carry out the conspiracy included, but were not limited to, the following:

a. KELLY and co-conspirators caused the transfer of funds between Taylor,
Bean & Whitaker Mortgage Corp, (TBW) bank accounts at Colonial Bank in an effort to
hide TBW overdrafts.

b. KELLY and co-conspirators caused TBW to sell to Colonial Bank
mortgage loan assets, via the COLB facility, that included loans that did not exist or that
had been committed or sold to third parties.

c. KELLY and co-conspirators caused TBW to sell to Colonial Bank, via the
AOT facility, fictitious Trades that had no mortgage loans collateralizing them and that
had fabricated agreements reflecting commitments by investors 10 purchase them in the
near future,

d. KELLY and co-conspirators caused TBW to sell to Colonial Bank, via the

AOT facility, Trades backed by impaired-value loans and real estate owned that had



Case 1:11-cr-00119-LMB Document 4 Filed 03/16/11 Page 3 of 4 PagelD# 7

fabricated agreements reflecting commitments by investors to purchase them in the near

future.

€. KELLY and co-conspirators periodically “recycled” fraudulent loans,
identified as “Plan B” loans, on the COLB facility and the fictitious and impaired Trades
on the AOT facility to give the false appearance that old loans and Trades had been sold
and replaced by new loans and Trades.

f. KELLY and co-conspirators covered up their misappropriations of funds
from the COLB and AOT facilities by causing false documents and information to be
provided to Colonial Bank.

g KELLY and co-conspirators caused Colonial BancGroup to file with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) materially false annual reports contained in
Forms 10-K and quarterly reports contained in Forms 10-Q that misstated the value and
nature of assets held by Colonial BancGroup.

3. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect the objects thereof, KELLY and
other co-conspirators committed or caused others to commit the following overt acts, among
others, in the Eastem District of Virginia and elsewhere:

a. On or about January 6, 2009, KELLY and other co-conspirators caused

Colonial Bank to wire approximately $66,400,000.00 to LaSalle Bank in

connection with the purported purchase of three Trades from TBW, which were to

be held on Colonial Bank’s books as securities purchased under agreements to
resell.

(All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, § 371.)



Case 1:11-cr-00119-LMB Document 4 Filed 03/16/11 Page 4 of 4 PagelD# 8

DENIS J. MCINERNEY
Chief, Fraud Section
Criminal Division

United States Department of Justice
By: ‘a%&'% 3/Jt 011
/

Patrick F. Stokes
Deputy Chief
Robert A. Zink
Trial Attomey

NEIL H. MACBRIDE
United States Attorney

By: M 4—-%:
Charles F, Connolly”
Paul J. Nathanson
Assistant United States Attorneys
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prm————— el 1

i

EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA iy

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FORTHY | 1A% 16 201l

Alexandria Division

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA )
V. ; CRIMINAL NO. 1:11CR119
TERESA KELLY, ;
Defendant. ;
PLEA AGREEMENT

Denis J. McInemey, Chief, Fraud Section of the Criminal Division of the United States
Department of Justice, Patrick F. Stokes, Deputy Chief, and Robert A. Zink, Trial Attorney, and Neil
H. MacBride, United States Attorney for the Eastern District of Virginia, Charles F. Connolly and
Paul J. Nathanson, Assistant United States Attorneys, and the defendant, TERESA KELLY, and the
defendant’s counsel have entered into an agreement pursuant to Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of
Criminal Procedure. The terms of the agreement are as follows:

1. Offenses and Maximum Penalties

The defendant agrees to waive indictment and plead guilty to a one-count criminal
information charging the defendant with conspiracy (in violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Section 371) to commit bank fraud (in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1344),
securities fraud (in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1348), and wire fraud (in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343). The maximum penalies for conspiracy are
amaximum tenm of five (5) years of imprisonment; a fine of $250,000, or alternatively, a fine of not

more than the greater of twice the gross gain or twice the gross loss; full restitution; a special
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assessment; and three (3) years of supervised release. The defendant understands that this supervised
release term is in addition to any prison term the defendant may receive, and that a violation of a
term of supervised release could result in the defendant being returned to prison for the full term of
supervised release.
2. Factual Basis for the Plea
The defendant will plead guilty because the defendant is in fact guilty of the charged offense.
The defendant admits the facts set forth in the statement of facts filed with this plea agreement and
agrees that those facts establish guilt of the offenses charged beyond a reasonable doubt. The
statement of facts, which is hereby incorporated into this plea agreement, constitutes a stipulation
of facts for purposes of Section 1B1.2(a) of the Sentencing Guidelines.
3. Assistance and Advice of Counsel
The defendant is satisfied that the defendant’s attorney has rendered effective assistance. The
defendant understands that by entering into this agreement, defendant surrenders certain rights as
provided in this agreement. The defendant understands that the rights of criminal defendants include
the following:
a. the right to plead not guilty and to persist in that plea;
b. the right to a jury trial;
c. the right to be represented by counsel — and if necessary have the coun
appoint counsel — at trial and at every other stage of the proceedings; and
d. the right at trial to confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, to be
protecied from compelled self-incrimination, 10 testify and present evidence,

and to eompel the attendance of witnesses.



Case 1:11-cr-00119-LMB Document 6 Filed 03/16/11 Page 3 of 15 PagelD# 12

4. Role of the Court and the Probation Office

The defendant understands that the Court has jurisdiction and authority to impose any
sentence within the statutory maximum described above but that the Court will determine the
defendant’s actual sentence in accordance with 18 , United States Code, Section 3553(a). The
defendant understands that the Court has not yet determined a sentence and that any estimate of the
advisory sentencing range under the U.S. Sentencing Commission’s Sentencing Guidelines Manual
the defendant may have received from the defendant’s counsel, the United States, or the Probation
Office, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not binding on the United States, the Probation Office,
orthe Court. Additionally, pursuant to the Supreme Court’s decision in United States v. Booker, 543
U.S. 220, 125 8. Ct. 738 (2005), the Court, after considering the factors set forth in Title 18, Uoited
States Code, Section 3553(a), may impose a sentence above orbelow the advisory sentencing range,
subject only to review by higher courts for reasonableness. The United States makes no promise or
representation concerning what sentence the defendant will receive, and the defendant cannot
withdraw a guilty plea based upon the actual sentence.

5. Waiver of Appeal, FOIA and Privacy Act Rights

The defendant also understands that Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742 affords a
defendant the right to appeal the sentence imposed. Nonetheless, the defendant knowingly waives
the right to appeal the conviction and any sentence within the statutory maximum described above
(or the manner in which that sentence was determined) on the grounds set forth in Title 18, United
States Code, Section 3742 or on any ground whatsoever, in exchange for the concessions made by
the United States in this plea agrecement. This agreement does not affect the rights or obligations of

the United States as set forth in Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742(b). The defendant also
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hereby waives all rights, whether asserted directly or by a representative, to request or receive from

any department or agency of the United States any records pertaining to the investigation or

prosecution of this case, including without limitation any records that may be sought under the

Freedom of Information Act, Title 5, United States Code, Section 552, or the Privacy Act, Title 5,

United States Code, Section 552a.

6. Recommended Sentencing Factors

In accordance with Rule 11{c){1)(B) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, the United

States and the defendant will recommend to the Court that the following provisions of the

Sentencing Guidelines apply:

a.

pursuant to U.S.S.G. § 2B1.1(a)(1), the base offense level for the conduct
charged in Count One is 6;

pursuant to U.S.8.G. § 2B1.1(b)(2)(c), the conduct charged in Count One
involved 250 or more vietims, and pursuant to U.S.S.G. § 2B1.1(b)(14)(B),
the conduct charged in Count One substantially jeopardized the safety and
soundness of a financial institution; accordingly, the defendant qualifies for
an 8-levcl upward adjustment (see U.S.S.G. § 2BL.1(b){(14)(c));

pursuant to U.S.8.G. Section 2B1.1(b)(9), the conduct charged in Count One
involved sophisticated means and qualifies for a 2-level upward adjustment;
pursuant to U.S.S.G. § 3B1.1{c), the defendant's role in the offense charged
in Count One was one of a supervisor in a criminal activity and qualifies for
a 2-level enhancement; and

pursuant to U.S.S.G. § 3E1.1(b), the defendant has assisted the government
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in the investigation and prosecution of the defendant’s own misconduct by
timely notifying authorities of the defendant’s intention to enter a plea of
guilty, thereby permitting the government to avoid preparing for trial and
permitting the govemment and the Court to allocate their resources
efficiently. If the defendant qualifies for a 2-level dccrease in offcnse level
pursuant to U.S.S.G. § 3E1.1(a) and the offense level prior to the operation
of that section is a level 16 or greater, the government agrees to file, pursuant
to U.S.S.G. § 3EI.1(b), a motion prior to, or at the time of, sentencing for an
additional 1-level decrease in the defendant’s offense level,
The United States and the defendant may argue at sentencing that additional provisions of
the Sentencing Guidelines apply.
7. Special Assessment
Before sentencing in this case, the defendant agrees to pay a mandatory special assessment
of one hundred dollars ($100.00) per count of conviction.
8. Payment of Monetary Penalties
The defendant understands and agrees that whatever monetary penalties are imposed by the
Court pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 3613, will be duc and payable immediately
and subject to immediate enforcement by the United States. Furthermore, the defendant agrees to
provide all of her financial information to the United States and the Probation Office and, if
requested, to participate in a pre-sentencing debtor’s examination. If the Court imposes a schedule
of payments, the defendantunderstands that the schedule of payments is merely a minimum schedule

of payments and not the only method, nor a limitation on the methods, available to the United States
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to enforce the judgment. If the defendant is incarcerated, the defendant agrees to participate in the
Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program, regardless of whether the Court
specifically directs participation or imposes a schedule of payments.

9. Restitution for Offenses of Conviction

The defendant agrees to the entry of a Restitution Order for the full amount of the victims’
losses. At this time, the Govemment is aware that the following victims have suffered the following
losses: To Be Determined

10. Limited Immunity from Further Prosecution

The United States will not further criminally prosecute the defendant for the specific conduct
described in the information or statement of facts. The defendant understands that this agreement
is binding only upon the Fraud Section of the Criminal Division of the United States Department of
Justice and the Criminal Division of the United States Attorney’s Office for the Eastem District of
Virginia. This agreement does notbind the Civil Division ofthe United States Department of Justice
or the United States Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of Virginia or any other United States
Attomey’s Office, nor does it bind any other Section of the Department of Justice, nor does it bind
any other state, local, or federal prosecutor. It also does not bar or compromise any civil, tax, or

administrative claim pending or that might be made against the defendant.
II.  Defendant’s Cooperation

The defendant agrees to cooperate fully and truthfully with the United States, and provide
all information known to the defendant regarding any criminal activity as requested by the United

States. In that regard:
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a. The defendant agrees to testify truthfully and completely as a witness before
any grand jury or in any other judicial or administrative proceeding when

called upon to do so by the United States.

b. The defendant agrees to be reasonably available for debriefing and pre-trial

conferences as the United States may require.

c. The defendant agrees to provide all documents, records, writings, or materials
of any kind in the defendant’s possession or under the defendant’s care,
custody, or control relating directly or indirectly to all areas of inquiry and

investigation by the United States or at the request of the United States.

d. The defendant agrees that the Statement of Facts is limited to information to
support the plea. The defendant will provide more detailed facts relating to

this case during ensuing debriefings.

e. The defendant is hereby on notice that the defendant may not violate any
federal, state, or local criminal law while cooperating with the government,
and that the government will, in its discretion, consider any such violation in
evaluating whether to file amotion for a downward departure or reduction of

sentence.

f. Nothing in this agreement places any obligation on the govemment to seek

the defendant’s cooperation or assistance.
12.  Use of Information Provided by the Defendant Under This Agreement
Pursuant to Section 1B1.8 of the Sentencing Guidelines, no truthful information that the

2
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defendant provides pursuant to this agreement will be used to enhance the defendant’s guidelines
range. The United States will bring this plea agreement and the full extent of the defendant’s
cooperation to the attention of other prosecuting offices if requested. Nothing in this plea agreement,
however, restricts the Court’s or Probation Office’s access to information and records in the
possession of the United States. Furthermore, nothing in this agreement prevents the government
in any way from prosecuting the defendant should the defendant provide false, untruthful, or
petjurious information or testimony or from using information provided by the defendant in

furtherance of any forfeiture action, whether eriminal or eivil, administrative or judicial.
13.  Prosecution in Other Jurisdictions

The Fraud Section of the Criminal Division of the United States Department of Justice and
the Criminal Division of the United States Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of Virginia will
not contact any other state or federal prosecuting jurisdiction and voluntarily tumm over truthful
information that the defendant provides under this agreement to aid a prosecution of the defendant
in that jurisdiction. Should any other prosecuting jurisdiction attempt to use truthful information the
defendant provides pursuant to this agreement against the defendant, the Fraud Section of the
Criminal Division of the United States Department of Justice and the Criminal Division of the
United States Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of Virginia agree, upon request, to contact
that jurisdiction and ask that jurisdiction to abide by the immunity provisions of this pleaagreement.
The parties understand that the prosecuting jurisdietion retains the diseretion over whether to use

such information.
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14,  Defendant Must Provide Full, Compiete and Truthful Cooperation

This plea agreement is not conditioned upon charges being brought against any other
individual. This plea agreement is not conditioned upon any outcome in any pending investigation.
This plea agreement is not conditioned upon any result in any future prosecution which may occur
because of the defendant’s cooperation. This plea agreement is not conditioned upon any result in
any future grand jury presentation or frial involving charges resulting from this investigation. This

plea agreement is conditioned upon the defendant providing full, complete and truthful cooperation.
1S.  Maotion for a Downward Departure

The parties agree that the United States reserves the right to seck any departure from the
applicable sentencing guidelines, pursuantto Section 5K 1. 1 of the Sentencing Guidelines and Policy
Statements, or any reduction of sentence pursuant to Rule 35(b} of the Federal Rules of Criminal
Procedure, if, in its sole discretion, the United States determines that such a departure or reduction

of sentence is appropriate.
17.  Order of Prohibltion

The defendant agrees that she will consent to an Order of Prohibition From Further
Participation pursuant to Section 8(e) of the Federal Deposit insurance Act, Title 12, United States
Code, Section 1818(e), by entering into a Stipulation and Consent to the Issuance of an Order of
Prohibition From Further Participation. The defendant also agrees that she will consent to an Order
of Prohibition by entering into a Stipulation and Consent to the Issuance of an Order of Prohibition

with the Office of Thrift Supervision.
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18.  The Defendant’s Obligations Regarding Assets Subjeet to Forfeiture

The defendant agrees to identify all assets over which the defendant exercises or exercised
control, directly or indirectly, within the past eight years, or in which the defendant has or had during
that time any financial interest. The defendant agrees to take all steps as requested by the United
States to obtain from any other parties by any lawful means any records of assets owned at any time
by the defendant. The defendant agrees to undergo any polygraph examination the United States
may choose to administer concerning such assets and to provide and/or consent to the release of the
defendant’s tax retums for the previous six years. Defendant agrees to forfeit to the United States
all of the defendant’s interests in any asset of a value of more than $1000 that, within the last eight
years, the defendant owned, or in which the defendant maintained an interest, the ownership of

which the defendant fails to disclose to the United States in accordance with this agreement.
19. Forfeiture Agreement

The defendant agrees to forfeit all interests in any asset that the defendant owns or over
which the defendant exercises control, directly or indirectly, as well as any property that is traceable
to, derived from, fungible with, or a substitute for property that constitutes the proceeds of her
offense. The defendant further agrees to waive all interest in the asset(s) in any administrative or
judicial forfeiture proceeding, whether criminat or civil, state or federal. The defendant agrees to
consent to the entry of orders of forfeiture for such property and waives the requirements of Federal
Rules of Criminal Procedure 32.2 and 43(a) regarding notice of the forfeiture in the charging
instrument, announcement of the forfeiture at sentencing, and incorporation of the forfeiture in the

judgment. The defendant understands that the forfeiture of assets is part of the sentence that may

10
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be imposed in this case. The Fraud Section of the Criminal Division of the United States
Department of Justice and the Criminal Division of the United States Attorney’s Office for the
Eastem District of Virginia agree to recommend to the Department of Justice, Criminal Division,
Asset Forfeiture and Money Laundering Section that any monies obtained from the defendant
through forfeiture be transferred to the Clerk to distribute to the victirns of the offense in accordance

with any restitution order entered in this case.
20. Waiver of Further Review of Forfeiture

The defendant further agrees to waive all constitutional and statutory challenges in any
manner (including direct appeal, habeas corpus, or any other means) to any forfeiture carried out in
accordance with this Plea Agreement on any grounds, including that the forfeiture constitutes an
excessive fine or punishment. The defendant also waives any failure by the Court to advise the
defendant of any applicable forfeiture at the time the guilty plea is accepted as required by Rule
11(b)(1)(J). The defendant agrees to take all steps as requested by the United States to pass clear title
to forfeitable assets to the United States, and to testify truthfully in any judicial forfeiture proceeding.
The defendant understands and agrees that ail property covered by this agreement is subject to
forfeiture as proceeds of illegal conduct, property facilitating illegal conduct, property involved in
illegal conduct giving rise to forfeiture, and substitute assets for property otherwise subject to

forfeiture.
21,  Breach of the Plea Agreement and Remedies

This agreernent is effective when signed by the defendant, the defendant’s attorney, and an

attomey for the United States. The defendant agrees to entry of this plea agreement at the date and

11
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time scheduled with the Court by the United States (in consultation with the defendant’s attorney).

If the defendant withdraws from this agreement, or commits or attempts to commit any additional

federal, state or local crimes, or intentionally gives maserially false, incomplete, or misleading

testimony or information, or otherwise violates any provision of this agreement, then:

a.

The United States will be released from its obligations under this agreement,
including any obligation to seek a downward departure or a reduction in
sentence. The defendant, however, may not withdraw the guilty plea entered

pursuant to this agreement;

The defendant will be subject to prosecution for any federal criminal
violation, including, but not limited to, perjury and obstruction of justice, thai
is not tirne-barred by the applicable statute of limitations on the date this
agreement is signed. Notwithstanding the subsequent expiration of the
statute of limitations, in any such prosecution, the defendant agrees to waive

any statute-of-limitations defense; and

Any prosecution, including the prosecution that is the subject of this
agreement, may be premised upon any information provided, or statements
made, by the defendant, and all such information, statements, and leads
derived therefrom may be used against the defendant. The defendant waives
any right to claim that statements made before or afier the date of this
agreement, including the statement of facts accompanying this agreement or

adopted by the defendant and any other s1atements madc pursuant 10 this or

12
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any other agreement with the United States, should be excluded or suppressed
under Fed. R. Evid. 410, Fed. R. Crim. P. [1(f), the Sentencing Guidelines

or any other provision of the Constitution or federal law.

Any alleged breach of this agreement by cither party shall be determined by the Court in an
appropriate proceeding at which the defendant’s disclosures and documentary evidence shall be
admissible and at which the moving party shall be required to establish a breach of the plea
agreement by a preponderance of the evidence. The proceeding established by this paragraph docs
not apply, however, to the decision of the United States whether to file a motion based on
“substantial assistance”™ as that phrase is used in Rule 35(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal
Procedure and Section 5K 1.1 of the Sentencing Guidelines and Policy Statements. The defendant

agrees that the decision whether to file such a motion rests in the sole discretion of the United States.
22,  Nature of the Agreement and Modifications

This written agreement constitutes the complete plea agreement between the United States,
the defendant, and the defendant’s counsel. The defendant and her attomey acknowledge that no
threats, promises, or representations have been made, nor agreements reached, other than those set
forth in writing in this plea agreement, to cause the defendant to plead guilty. Any modification of
this plea agreement shall be valid only as set forth in writing in a supplemental or revised plea

agreement signed by all parties.

13
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By:

Denis J. McInerney

Chief

Criminal Division, Fraud Section
United States Department of Justice

5//6»/2011

Patrick F. Stokes
Deputy Chief
Robert A. Zink
Trial Attomey

Neil H. MacBride
United States Attorney

Lol oty

Charles F. Connolly
Paul J. Nathanson
Assistant United States Attorneys

Defendant’s Signature: I hereby agree that I have consulted with my attorney and fully

understand all rights with respect to the pending criminal information. Further, | fully understand

all rights with respect to Title 18, United States Codc, Section 3553 and the provisions of the

Sentencing Guidelines Manual that may apply in my case. | have read this plea agreement and

carefully reviewed every part of it with my attomey. 1 understand this agreement and voluntarily

agree to it.

Date: -l

T K

Teresa Kelly
Defendant

CJ

14
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Defense Counsel Signature: | am counsel for the defendant in this case. 1 have fully
explained to the defendant the defendant’s rights with respect to the pending information. Further,
Thave reviewed Title 18, United States Code, Section 3553 and the Sentencing Guidelines Manual,
and 1 have fully explained to the defendant the provisions that may apply in this ease. 1 have

carefully reviewed every part of this plea agreement with the defendant. To my knowledge, the

defendant’s decision to enter intwt is an informed and voluntary one.

o 1184 L@W

Robert Leventhal, Esq.
Alan Yamamoto, Esq,
Counsel for the Defendant

15
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE .
EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA —
Alexandria Division

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA )

v. ; CRIMINAL NO. I:11CR119
TERESA KELLY, ;

Defendant. ;

TATEMENT OF
The United States and the defendant, TERESA KELLY, agree that had this matter

proceeded to trial the United States would have proven the facts set forth in this Statement of
Facts beyond a reasonable doubt. Unless otherwise stated, the time periods for the facts set forth
herein are at all times relevant to the charges in the Information.

L. Overview

1. The defendant was an operations supervisor in Colonial Bank’s Mortgage
Warehouse Lending Division (MWLD). MWLD was located in Orlando, Florida.

2. From in or about 2002 through in or about August 2009, co-conspirators,
including the defendant, engaged in a scheme to defraud various entities and individuals,
including Colonial Bank, a federally insured bank; Colonial BancGroup, Inc.; sharecholders of
Colonial BancGroup; and the investing public. One of the goals of the scheme to defraud was to
cause Colonial Bank to provide funding to Taylor, Bean & Whitaker (TBW) to assist TBW in
covering expenses related to operations and servicing payments owed to third-party purchasers of

loans and/or mortgage-backed securities. Although the defendant did not personally receive
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funds paid out by Colonial Bank to TBW as a result of the scheme to defraud, she knowingly and
intentionally placed Colonial Bank and Colonial BancGroup at significant risk of incurring losses
as a result of the scheme and, in fact, caused Colonial Bank to purchase assets from TBW of
substantially more than $400 million that in fact had no value and were held on Colonial Bank’s
and Colonial BancGroup’s books as if they had actual valuc.

IL. Colonial Bank’s Purchase of Worthless Assets

3. In or about early 2002, TBW began running overdrafis in its master bank account
at Colonial Bank due to TBW'’s inability to meet its operating expenses, such as mortgage loan
servicing payments owed to investors in Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae securities, payroll, and
other obligations. The defendant and co-conspirators covered up the overdrafts by transferring,
or “sweeping,” ovemight money from another TBW account with excess funds into the master
account to avoid the master account falling into an overdrawn status. This sweeping of funds
gave the false appearance to other Colonial Bank cmployees that TBW's master account was not
overdrawn. The day after sweeping funds, the conspirators would cause the money to be
returned to the other account, only to have to sweep funds back into the master account later that
day to hide the deficit again. By in or about December 2003, the size of the deficit due to
overdrafts had grown to tens of millions of dollars.

4. In or about December 2003, Lee Farkas, the chairman of TBW, and co-
conspirators, including the defendant, caused the deficit in TBW's master account at Colonial
Bank to be transferred to “COLB,” a mortgage loan purchase facility at MWLD. Through the
COLB facility, Colonial Bank purchased interests in individual residential mortgage loans from

TBW pending resale of the loans to third-party investors. The purpose of the COLB facility was
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to provide mortgage companies, like TBW, with liquidity to generate new mortgage loans
pending the resale of the existing mortgage loans to investors. The COLB facility was designed
such that Celonial Bank would recoup its outlay only after TBW resold a mortgage loan to a
third-party investor, which generally was supposed to take place within 90 days after being
placed on the COLB facility.

5. In this part of the scheme, which the conspirators called “Plan B,” Farkas and
other co-conspirators, including the defendant, sought to disguise the misappropriations of tens
of millions of dollars of Colonial Bank funds to cover up TBW shortfalls or overdrafts of TBW’s
accounts at Colonial Bank as payments related to Colonial Bank's purchase through the COLB
facility of legitimate TBW mortgage loans. Farkas and other co-conspirators, including the
defendant, accomplished this by causing TBW to provide false mortgage loan data to Colonial
Bank under the pretense that it was selling Colonial Bank interests in mortgage loans. As the
defendant, Farkas, and other co-conspirators knew, however, the Plan B data included data for
loans that did not exist or that TBW had already committed or sold to other third-party investors.
As a result, these loans were not, in fact, available for sale to Colonial Bank. Whether a Plan B
loan was fictitious or owned by a third party, the defendant knew and understood that she and her
co-conspirators had caused Colonial Bank to pay TBW for an asset that was worthless to
Colonial Bank.

6. Farkas and other co-conspirators at TBW caused the Plan B loan data to be
delivered to the defendant and/or other co-conspirators at Colonial Bank, The defendant and

other co-conspirators caused the Plan B loan data to be recorded in Colonial Bank’s books and
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records to give the false appearance that Colonial Bank had purchased legitimate interests in
mortgage loans from TBW through COLB.

7. To avoid scrutiny from regulators, auditors, and Colonial Bank management of
Plan B loans sold to Colonial Bank, Farkas and other co-conspirators devised and, with the
defendant’s assistance, implemented a plan that gave the appearance that TBW was periodically
selling the Plan B loans off of the COLB facility. In fact, Plan B loans were unable to be sold off
of the COLB facility, and the conspirators instead created a document trail that disguised the
existence of the Plan B loans.

8. In or about mid-2005, conspirators caused the deficit created by Plan B to be
moved from the COLB faeility to MWLD’s Assignment of Trade (AOT) facility. The AOT
facility was designed for the purchase of interests in pools of loans, which were referred to as
“Trades,” that were in the process of being securitized and/or sold to third-party investors. The
conspirators moved the deficit to the AOT facility in part because, unlike the COLB facility,
Colonial Bank generally did not track in its accounting records loan-level data for the Trades
held on the AOT facility, thus making detection of the scheme by regulators, auditors, Colonial
Bank management, and others less likely.

9. In an effort to transfer the deficit caused by the Plan B loans on the COLB facility
to the AOT facility, Farkas and other co-conspirators, including the defendant, caused TBW to
engage in sales to Colonial Bank of fictitious Trades purportedly backed by pools of Plan B
loans. In fact, the Trades had no collateral backing them. As the defendant and other co-
conspirators knew, Colonial Bank held 1hesc fictitious Trades in its accounting records at the

amount Colonial Bank paid for them.
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10.  After moving the Plan B deficit from the COLB facility to the AOT faeility, TBW
eontinued to experience signifieant operating losses. From in or about mid-2005 through in or
about 2009, Farkas and other e¢o-conspirators, ineluding the defendant, continued to cause TBW
to sell additional fictitious Trades to Colonial Bank through the AOT facility. These Trades had
no pools of loans collateralizing them. Morcover, conspirators caused the creation of false
documents to reflect agreements, as required under the AQT facility, for third-party investors to
purchase the Trades within a short period of time. This fraudulent AOT funding was typically
provided in an ad hoc fashion based on requests from Farkas or other co-conspirators at TBW
for, among other reasons, servicing obligations, operational ¢xpenses, and eovering overdrafis.

1.  To obtain the fraudulent AOT funding, Farkas or other TBW co-conspirators
would contact the defendant and/or another ¢o-conspirator at Colonial Bank to request an
advance from the AQT facility. Onee an advance had been agreed to, TBW eo-conspirators
caused a wire request to be generated for the funds and provided the defendant and other
Colonial Bank co-conspirators with false documentation purporting to represent the sale of pools
to Colonial Bank to support the release of the funds. The defendant and her co-conspirators
caused the false information to be entered on Colonial Bank’s books and records, giving the
appearance that Colonial Bank owned a 99% interest in legitimate securities on the AOT facility
in exchange for the advances, when in fact those securities had no value and eould not be sold.

12.  In addition to causing Colonial Bank to hold in its accounting records fictitious
AOT Trades with no collateral backing them, Farkas and other eo-eonspirators, including the
defendant, caused Colonial Bank to hold in its accounting records AQT Trades backed by assets

that TBW was unable to sell, including but not limited to impaired-value loans, charged-off
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loans, previously sold loans, loans in foreclosure, and real-estate owned (REQ) property.
Conspirators also caused the creation of false documents to reflect agreements, as required under
the AQT facility, for third-party investors to purchase these impaired Trades within a short
period of time.

13.  Aswiththe Plan B loans, the defendant, Farkas, and other co-conspirators took
steps to cover up the fictitious and impaired Trades on AQT by giving the false appearance that,
periadically, the fictitious and impaired Trades were sold to third parties. The conspirators did
this by, among other things, engaging in sham sales to hide the fact that the vast majority of
assets backing the AQT Trades could not be resold because the assets were cither wholly
fictitious or consisted of, among other things, impaired-value loans and REQ and, in either case,
had no corresponding, legitimate commitment to be purchased by third parties. Farkas and other
co-conspirators, including the defendant, engaged in these sham sales to deceive others,
including regulators, auditors, and certain Colonial Bank management.

14.  The size of the deficit created by providing fraudulent advances to TBW through
Plan B loans and the fictitious AOT Trades fluctuated during the conspiracy, and it reached into
the hundreds of millions of dollars. During the course of the conspiracy, the defendant and other
co-conspirators negotiated the transfer of funds to Colonial Bank from TBW bank accounts or
lending facilities and obtained other collateral from TBW and Farkas in order to reduce the
deficit caused by the Plan B loans and the fictitious AQT Trades. Despite these efforts, the
government would prove at a trial that the deficit in AOT caused by the defendant’s and her
co-conspirators’ schcme was significantly more than $400 million on or about August 14, 2009,

the day the Alabama State Banking Department seized Colonial Bank and appointed the Federal
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Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) as receiver. Moreover, the govemnment would prove that
some wire transfers of funds by Colonial Bank to TBW for fictitious Plan B loans and AOT
securities involved transfers to LaSalle Bank, which had been purchased by Bank of America.
Some of these wires were processed from Chicago, Illinois, through a Bank of America server
located in Richmond, Virginia.
[II.  False Financial Statements

15.  During the conspiracy, the defendant was aware that the financial results of
MWLD were incorporated into Colonial BancGroup’s publicly filed financial statements,
including annual reports on Form 10-K and quarterly reports on Form 10-Q filed with the United
States Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). As the government would prove, Colonial
BancGroup’s Forms 10-K and Forms 10-Q were filed electronically with the SEC’s EDGAR
Management Office of Information and Technology, in Alexandria, Virginia, during the period
set forth in the Information. The defendant and her co-conspirators took steps to hide the fraud
scheme described in this statement of facts from Colonial Bank’s and Colonial BancGroup’s
senior management, auditors, and regulators, and Colonial BancGroup’s shareholders, including
by providing materially false information that significantly overstated assets held in the COLB
and AOT facilities. The defendant knew that these actions caused matcerially false financial data
to be reported to Colonial BancGroup and incorporated in its publicly filed statements.

16.  For example, in its Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2008, which was
filed on or about March 2, 2009, Colonial BancGroup reported that MWLD had total assets
under management of approximately $4.3 billion, of which approximately $1.55 billion, or 36%,

were held as AOT Trades reported as Securities Purchased under Agreements to Resell. In its
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last Form 10-Q filed with .the SEC, for the period ended March 31, 2009, which was filed on or
about May 8, 2009, Colonial BancGroup reported that MWLD managed assets valued at
approximately $4.9 billion, with approximately $1.6 billion, or approximately 33%, held as AOT
Trades reported as Securities Purchased under Agreements to Resell. As the defendant knew, the
vast majority of the securities held on AOT at that time were fictitious or impaired and were not
under legitimate agreements to be resold to third-party investors.
IV.  January 6, 2009, AOT Transaction

17.  On or about January 6, 2009, the defendant received an email request from a co-
conspirator at TBW requesting that Colonial Bank wire approximately $66,400,000 to LaSalle
Bank, on behalf of Ocala Funding, for the purported purchase of three Trades from TBW. The
co-conspirator also sent the defendant three “trade assignment agreements” purporting to
represent that TBW had arranged with a third-party to purchase the Trades in approximately one
month. As the defendant knew, the transaction was part of an effort by the co-conspirators 10
periodically “recycle” the Trades held on the AOT facility by making it appear that Trades had
been sold and replaced by newly purchased Trades. As the defendant knew, the three Trades
“purchased” by Colonial Bank had no loans assigned to them, and thus no actual value, and the
trade assignment agreements were false as therc was no third-party purchaser for the Trades. As
the defendant knew, the three new Trades were held in Colonial Bank’s books as securities

purchased under agreements to resell.
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V.  Conclusion

18.  The defendant admits that this statement of facts does not represent and is not
intended to represent an exhaustive factual recitation of all the facts about which she has
knowledge relating to the scheme to defraud as described herein.

19.  The defendant admits that her actions, as recounted herein, were in all respects
intentional and deliberate, reflecting an intention to do something the law forbids, and were not
in any way the product of any accident or mistake of law or fact.

Respectfully submitted,
Denis ). Mclnemey
United States Department of Justice

Chief
Criminal Division, Fraud Section

By: ~=- 2 3 / 201}

Patrick F. Stokes
Deputy Chief
Robert A. Zink
Trial Attorney

Neil H. MacBride
United States Attorney

By: M Loty
Charles F. Connolly
Paul J. Nathanson

Assistant United States Attorneys
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After consulting with my attomcy and pursuant to the plea agreement entered into this
day between the defendant, TERESA KELLY, and the United States, I hereby stipulate that the
above Statement of Facts is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge, and that had the

matter proceeded to trial, the United States would have proved the same beyond a reasonable

Yy [ “9>K“

Téresa Kelly
Defendant

doubt.

Iam TERESA KELLY's attomey. I have carefully reviewed the above Statement of

Facts with her. To my knowledge, her decision to stipulate to these facts is an informed and
voluntary one. M
(<
e

Robert Alan Leventhal JEsq.
Alan Yamamoto, Esq.
Attorneys for Defendant

10
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT |[G——k !
Eastern District of Virginia JUN 1 7 2011 jf} ;
Alexandria Division T
CLERK U.S QISTRICT COUriT l
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ALEXANDRIA, VIRGINIA

v. Case Number 1:11CR00119-001
TERESA A. KELLY,

Defendant.

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
The defendant, TERESA A. KELLY, was represented by Alan Yamamoto and Robert Leventhal, Esquires.

The defendant pleaded guilty to Count 1 of the Criminal Information. Accordingly, the defendant is
adjudged guilty of the following count, involving the indicated offense:

Date Dffense
Title & Section Nature of Offense Concluded Count Number
18 US.C.5§ 3N Conspliracy to Commit Bank Fraud, Wire Fraud, and 88/2009 1

Securities Fraud (Felony)
As pronounced on June 17, 2011, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 8** of this
Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address untll all fines, restitution, costs, and special

assessments imposed by this judgment are fully paid.
%}ﬁ
Is/

Leonie M. Brinkeria
United States District Judge

Signed this 17th day of June, 2011.

** Page 8 of this document contains sealed information
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Judgment--Page 2 of 8
Defendant: TERESA A. KELLY
Case Number: 1:11CR00119-001
IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be imprisoned
for a term of THREE (3) MONTHS.

The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons:

The defendant be designated to F.C.C. Coleman, Florida.

The defendant shall surrender for service of sentence any time after August 15, 2011 at the institution
designated by the Bureau of Prisons as notified by the United States Marshal. Until she self surrenders,
the defendant shall remain under the Order Setting Conditions of Release entered on March 16, 2011.

RETURN

| have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendant deliverad on o at
, with a certified copy of this Judgment.

c: P.O. (2} (3)
Mshl. (4) (2)
U.S.Afty. United States Marshal
U.S.Coll.

Dft. Cnsl. By
PTS Deputy Marshal
Financial

Registrar

ob
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Judgment--Page 3 of 8
Defendant: TERESA A. KELLY
Case Number: 1:11CR00119-001
SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon reiease from imprisonment, the defendant shali be on supervised release for a term of THREE (3)
YEARS.

The Probation Office shali provide the defendant with a copy of the standard conditions and any speciai conditions
of supervised release.

The defendant shail report to the probation office in the district to which the defendant is reieased within
72 hours of release from the custody of the Bureau of Prisons.

Whiie on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or iocal crime.
While on supervised release, the defendant shall not illegally possess a controiied substance.
While on supervised reiease, the defendant shaii not possess a firearm or destructive device.

If this judgment imposes a fine or a restitution obligation, it shall be a condition of supervised release that
the defendant pay any such fine or restitution in accordance with the Scheduie of Payments set forth in the
Criminai Monetary Penalties sheet of this judgment.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISED RELEASE

The defendant shail compiy with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this Court (set forth below):

1) The defendant shaii not ieave the judicial district without the permission of the Court or probation officer.

2) Thedefendant shail report to the probation officer and shall submit a truthful and complete written report within
the first five days of each month,

3) The detendant shaii answer truthfully ail inquiries by the probation officer and foiiow the instructions of the
probation officer.

4) The defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities.

5) The defendant shall work reguiariy at a fawful occupation uniess excused by the probation officer for
schooling, training, or other acceptable reasons.

6) The defendant shail notify the Probation Officer within 72 hours, or earlier if so directed, of any change in
residence.

7) The defendant shaii refrain from excessive use of aicohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute,
or administer any narcotic or other controiled substance, or any paraphernaiia related to such substances,
except as prescribed by physician.

8) The defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed or
administered.

9) The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with
any person convicted of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer.

10) The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall
permit confiscation of any contraband observed in piain view of the probation officer.

11) The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by
a law enforcement officer.

12) The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law
enforcement agency without the permission of the Court.

13) As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned
by the defendant's criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer
to make such notifications and to confirm the defendant's compliance with such notification requirement.
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Judgment--Page 4 of 8

Defendant: TERESA A. KELLY
Case Number: 1:11CR00Q119-001

SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While on supervised reiease, pursuant to this Judgment, the defendant shall aiso compiy with the foiiowing
additional conditions:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

For the first NINE (9) MONTHS of supervision the defendant wili be on home confinement with electronic
monitoring. The defendant shall abide by all of theterms and conditions of the home confinement/electronic
monitoring program inciuding paying the costs of the electronic monitoring. Defendant may leave home only
for educational programs; work related purposes; to attend meetings with attorneys, the probation officer
and any counseiors; for legitimate medicai appointments; to attend bona fide religious services, and to
attend court proceedings.

The defendant shall not open any new lines of credit or engage in any significant financial transactions
without prior approvai of the probation officer.

The defendant shall provide the probation officer access to any requested financial information, and waive
all privacy rights.

The defendant shall advise any empioyers of the nature of her conviction and supervision.

Although mandatory drug testing is waived pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3563(a) (4), defendant must remain drug
free and her probation officer may require random drug testing at any time.

The defendant shall make a good faith effort to pay her full restitution obiigation during supervised release,
to begin 60 days after release from custody, untii paid in fuii. The defendant shall pay restitution jointly
and severally with her co-defendants.
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Judgment--Page 5 of 8
Defendant: TERESA A. KELLY
Case Number: 1:11CR00119-001
CRIMINAL MONETARY PENALTIES

The defendant shaii pay the following total monetary penaities in accordance with the schedule of payments set
out below.

Count Special Assessment Fine
1 $100.00
Tota $100.00 $0.00
FINE

No fines have been imposed in this case.
SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS

Payments shall be applied in the following order: (1) assessment; (2) restitution; (3) fine principal; (4) cost of
prasecution; (5) interest; (6) penalties.

The special assessment is due in full immediately. If not paid immediately, the Court authorizes the deduction of
appropriate sums from the defendant's account while in confinement in accordance with the applicabie rules and
regulations of the Bureau of Prisons.

Any special assessment, restitution, or fine payments may be subject to penaities for default and delinquency.

If this judgmentimposes a period of imprisonment, payment of Criminal Monetary penalties shall be due during the
penod of imprisonment.

All criminal monetary penalty payments are to be made to the Clerk, United States District Court, except those
payments made through the Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibiiity Program,
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Judgment--Page 6 of 8
Defendant: TERESA A. KELLY
Case Number: 1:11CR00119-001

T N AND El
RESTITUTION

Restitution to be determined and reflected in a separate order to be issued in the future.

Payments of restitution are to be made to Clerk, U. S. District Court, 401 Courthouse Square, Alexandria, VA 22314,

Restitution is due and payable immediately and shall be paid in equal monthly payments to be determined and to
commence within 60 days of release, until paid in full,

Interest on Restitution has been waived.

If there are muitiple payees, any payment not made directly to a payee shall be divided prdportionately among the
payees named unless otherwise specified here:

Defendant is jointly and severally liable with co-defendants.

FORFEITURE
Forfeiture has not been ordered in this case.
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VIAUNITED PARCFEL SERVICE

M, Teresa Kelly

akoa Teresa AL Kelly
2ENT Twisted Proe Road
Ovoce, Fi. 34761

Rer Notice of Proposed Debarnent imd Continuation of Existing Suspension
Dear Ms. Keily:

You are hereby notiticd that the Departiment of Housing and Urbun Development (HUD)
18 proposing vour debarnient from future participaiion i procurement and NGAprocureInen
transactions us a participant or principal. with HUD and throughout the Executive Branch of the
Federal Government, tor a three-vear period from May 6. 2011 the date of your suspension. | his
action is 1 accordance with the procedures set forth at Fitle 2. Code of Federal Regulations
(C.FR). Parts 180 and 2424, Copics of those regutanions accompany this Notice, Your
proposcd debarment is based upon your guilty plea and conviction in the United Stutes Dhsirict
Court for the Eastern District of Virginia. Alexandria Division. for violation of 18 U.8.C. § 371
(Conspirucy to Commit Bank Fraud. Wire Fraud. and Securitios Fraud). You pled guilty and
were convieted of seling and transterring nonexistent or previously sold collateralized loans.
COVLTIng up wisappropriations ot funds. and filing false annual reports svith the Scecurities and
FExchange Conunission. Your actions are evidenee ol serious wresponsibility and are cause for
debarment under the provisions of 2 CF.R. §180.800(a)(1). 3y and ().

[ adddition, you continue to he suspended from participation m procurenient and
ROPTOCUTaNCNt ransactions as a partcipunt or principal. widy HUD and throughout the
Freeutive Braneh af the Pederal Government, This action is also in avcordance with the
procedures set torth it 2 CFR . Parts 180 and 2429, Your con ietion conshitutes mdependent
adequate evidence an which to buse vour suspension under the provisions of 2 CFR. §8 180,700
and 180,705, The violation m the conviction specttios that you conspired o delnud the United
States, which s contriry o the public™s interest, Given the setiouspess of the violatton. 1 have
deternimed that continuing vor SUNDUNSION Is Bocessary to pratect the public interest, Your
suspension s tor a temporary period pendie the comipletion of the debamient proceadings.

NUICC V0L WETT a1 Openitin s sepervisor of gomesteage bl disisjon, hamdhmg FHA-
msured loans, vou have been or e reiseonably be expected o be tivalved i covered

fLinsacichny,



[f' you decide to contest this proposed debarment and CONUNUING SUSPENsIon. Y ou may
submit a written argument and request an informal hearing. which you may attend in person or
by welephone or through o representative. Pursuant to 2 C.F.R. $8 180,730 and 186,875 vour
written submission must identifv; 1) specitic tacts that contradict the statements contained in this
Notice of Proposed Debarment and Continuation of Existing Suspension (a general denial is
nsufticient to raise a genuine dispute over facts material o the debarment): 2) all existing.
proposed. or prior exclusions against vou under regulations implementing Fxecutive Order
12349, and al similar actions taken by Federal. State. vr local agencies. mncluding administrative
agreements that aftect only those agencies: 3} all criminal and civil proceedmgs against vou not
included in this Notice of Proposed Debarment and Comtinuation of Existing Suspension that
erew out of the facts relevant 10 the causce{s) stated i this Notice: and 4) all of vour affiliates as
defined in the enclosed regulations a1 2 C.F.R. ¥ 180.905. If vou provide false information. the
Department may seek further criminal. civil or administrative action against you as appropriate.

Please be advised that contesting a suspension does not stay the suspension. While
contesting the suspension. you are prohibited from participating in any nonprocurement or
procurement transaction with the Federal Government as identified above, Your written
opposition and hearing request must be submitted within 30 days of your receipt of this Notice of
Proposcd Debarment and Continuation of Existing Suspension. The response may be matled 10
the Debarment Docket Clerk. U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development,
Departmental Enforcement Center, 451 7th Street. S.W., B-133 - Portals 200, Washington, DC
20410. If vou wish to use a courier or overnight mail. send your response to the Docket Clerk.
Departmental Enforcement Center. 1250 Maryland Avenue, S.W.. Suite 200. Washington, DC
20024,

Mr. Mortimer Coward s my designee in this matter. [f you request a hearing, Mr.
Coward will set a briefing and hearing schedule as necessarv. e has the authority to review any
written submissions. conduct an informal hearing. make a recommendation as to whether there is
a genuine dispute over material facts, and proposc a recommended deciston, If | determine that a
genuine dispute over material facts exists. 1 will refer this matter to a Hearing Officer. who is an
administrative judge. for a formal hearing to make findings of fact pursuant 1o 2 C.F.R. N
180.843. After receiving those tindings of fact. and any related submissions from the partics, [
will make a tinal deeision. If you have any questions. please call Stanlev E. Field, Director.
Comptiance Division. Mr. Field mayv be reached af (BX7HC)

The final decision rcgarding vour proposed debarment will be based upon evidence and
information, including any written information and argument, that both you and the Government
may submit in this maiter. [If vou fail to respond to this Notice within the 30-day period, this
proposed debarment will be aifirmed.



It this matter is referred 1o a Hearmg Officer for a tormal hearing. this Notice of
administrative action shall also serve as a Complaint. in compliance with 24 C F.R.
S 26.13¢a) (hyand (¢,

Sineerely.
(BUTHC)
bt Craig T. Clemmensen
Direcior

Departmental Fofarcement Center

Enciosures
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Director. DEC (Clemmensen. Craie 1)) Port=200
Assoctate General Counsel for Program Enforcement
{(Narode. Dane M) Port=200
Special Agent in Charee, Tampa. OIG
(bYTNC) | [O1G File No. 2010 FC 002468 1]

Assistant Spectal Agent in Charge. Tampa. Q10
Assistant Special Agent in Charee. Miami. OIG ,
Special Agent. Tampa. OIG (bY7)C) |
Sharpley. Christopher R. Deputy Tnspector General for [nvestigations.
FHEA-OIG (Unirisiophor Shurmics o HERRUNS!

Emerzian. Peter. Special Agcl:it_ n (:h;ipr_gc\ Washington DC. FHFA-0IG

(b)7HC)

(Uil nersian a fhiingon)
Baker. Brian W Deniry Chief Counsel, Washington DC. FHFA-OIG
(BUTHC)
sadd aY hietf el. Washington. DC. FHFA-OIG

(bU7)C)

Regional Administrator. Atlania {Jennings. Ed)
Field Office Director. Tampa {Gadsden. Rosemarv)
Regional Counsel. Atlanta {Murray. Donnic)
Chiet Counsel. Miami (Swain. Sharon)
Branch Chief. QAD, Atlanta SF HOC (Kiuirell. Nora (7.)

File Port#200
Burks Port#200
Field Part#200)

Sharepoint: Burks:Kclly Teresa:Proposed Debarment Continue Existing Suspension
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M. Teresa Ketly

akea Teresa AL Kelly
2181 Twisted Pine Rowd
Ococee. FL 34761

Re: Notice pf Final Deterpunation
Dear Ms, Kelly:

By notice dated July 8. 2011 {(Notice). yvou were (nld ot the proposed debarment action
against you by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for a three vear
pertod from May 6. 2011, the date of your suspension. You were informed ot your right to
submit, within 30 davs of vour receipt of the Notice. a written argument and a request for a
hearing in opposition to the proposed debarment action, The Notice also advised vou that 1f you
did not respond within 30 davs. a final detenmination would be 1ssucd.

You iid not respond to the Notiee within the required 30 days and your debarment has
become final. During your perind of debarment. vou are excluded from procurement and
nonprocurement transactions, as either a principal or participant. with HUD and throughout the
Exceutive Branch ot the Federal Government. Your debamient is eftective through May 5.
2014, Your suspension is hereby superseded by this debarment.

Sincerely.

(b)7HC)

Ccrdig Leclemmensen
Director
Departmental Enforcement Center
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Associate General Counsel for Program Endorcement
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Spectal Agent i Charge. Tampa, (HG
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Assistant Specral Agent in Charge, Muaonn, QIG

Special Agent, Tampa. OIG | (bXTXC) |

Sharpley. Christopher R. Deputy nspector General for nvestigations.
FHEA-OQLG (Chnstopher. Sharplevie fhieoey)

Emerzian. Peter. Special Agent i Charge, Washigton DC, FHFA-OIG
(Peterimersave it gov)

Baker. Brian W.. Deputy Chict Counsel. Washington DC, FHFA-OIG

| (bY(7)C) |
Saddier, Bryan. Chiet Counsel, Washington, DC. THFA-OIG
| (BYT)C) |

Regional Admmistrator, Atlanta (Jenmngs, Ed)

Field Oftfice Director. Tampa (Gadsden. Rosemary)
Regianal Counsel. Atlanta (Murray, Donnte)

Chief Counsel, Miami (Swain. Sharen)

Branch Chiet. QAD. Atlanta SF HOC (Kittrell Nora GU)

File Port#200
Burks Part&200
Field PariE200

cid decterhuadorng vov

Sharcpoint: Burk<'Kelly Teresa:Final Debamment with Suspension



OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
Federal Housing Finance Agency

400 7th Street, S.W., Washington DC 20024

January 29, 2014

MEMORANDUM
TO: Alfred M. Pollard, FHEA Gencral Counscl
(BY7HC) ~
FROM: PererTmerzTam, THrA-uTa oeputy Inspector General for Investigations

SUBJECT:  Suspended Counterparty Program Referral for Teresa A. Kelly

The Federal Housing Finance Agency’s (FHFA) Office of Inspector General (OIG) 1s
referring Ms. Tercsa A. Kelly to be considered for designation as a suspended counterparty under
the FHFA’s Suspended Counterparty Program (SCP)." The SCP’s purpose is fo mitigate the risk
to the regulated entities presented by individuals and entities with a history of fraud or other
financial misconduct. This referral is made as a result of Ms. Kclly’s recent guilty plea in the
United States Distriet Court for the Eastern District of Virginia (Alexandria Division) to a felony
charge of conspiracy la commit bank fraud, securitics fraud, and wire fraud. She has also been
debarred by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

For these reasons, the OIG believes that she poses an excessive risk to the safety and
soundness of the regulated entities. The OIG therefore requests that FHI'A designate Ms. Kelly
a suspended counterparty, thereby permanently suspending her and any aftiliated cntitics from
entering into future contractual relationships with the regulated entities with regard to mortgages,
securities or other lending products.

1. Subject Information

Name: Ms, Teresa A. Kelly
DOB:

SS#:

Address; (BX7HC)

=

" June 15, 2012 Alfred Pollard Memorandum to Regulated Entities” General Counsels (hereinafter “Policy,
attached hereta). Note: in October of 2013 FHFA issued an interim final rule covering these matters titled,
Suspended Counterparty Program, 78 Fed. Reg. 63007-15 (Oct. 23, 2013) (12 C.F.R. Part 1227).



I1. Suspended Counterparty Program

FHE A cstablished the SCP *to help address the risk to the regulated entitics presented by
individuals and entities with a history of fraud or other financial misconduct.”® The SCP
requires that FHFA be notified if “an individual or entity with which [a regulated entity] has a
contractual relationship in the mortgage, securities or other lending preduct business:

1. Has, within the past three (3) years, been criminally convicted of:

a. fraud or similar offensc in connection with a mortgage, mortgage business,
securities or other lending product; or

b. cmbezzlement, theft, conversion, forgery, bribery, making falsc statements or
claims, tax evasion, obstruction of justice, or any other similar offense; or

2. Was, within the past three (3) vears, suspended or dcbarred by any Federal agency for
conduct that would constitutc an offense described in paragraph 1 above.”

FHFA will engage in an independent review of cach report and, if appropriate, issuc a Suspended
Counterparty Designation (SCD) for the referred individual or entity.* A SCD protects the
rcgulated cntitics from doing business with any party that FHFA’s SCP analysis has determined
would present an excessive risk to regulated entities” safety and soundness. As appropriate,
FIFA will work with the O1G on any issues related to the SCP

FHFA’s authority to issue such an order designating an entity or person a suspended
counterparly comes from section 1313B of the Federal Housing Enterprises Financial Safcty and
Soundness Act of 1992, which authorized FHF A to establish standards for the rcgulated entities
regarding prudential management of risks, including counterparty risk. See 12 U.S.C. §
4513b(a)(9). Additionally, scction 1313G of the Act authorizes FHEA to issue any orders
necessary to cnsure that the Act’s purposcs arc accomplished. /d. § 4526(a). Finally, section
1313 of the Act authorizes FHFA 1o excrcise such incidental powers as may be necessary in the
supcrvision and regulation of each regulated entity. Id. § 4513(a)(2).

 policy at |.
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11, Relevant Factual Background

The following basic summary sets forth facts which the OIG belicves supports the
designatian of Ms. Kelly as a suspended counterparty.®

A. Referral: Ms. Kelly

At all times relevant to this referral, Ms. Kelly was an operations supervisor in Calanial
Bank’s Mortgage Warehouse Lending Division (MWLD). The MWLD was lacated in Orlando,
Flarida. Colonial Bank was an Alabama-based, state-chartcred bank which provided short-term,
secured funding to mortgage lending companies.

B. The Conspiracy

Taylor, Bean, & Whitaker Mortgage Corporation (TBW) was one of the largest privately
held mortgage lending companies in the United States.” In early 2002 TBW began running
overdrafts in ils master bank account at Colenial Bank due to TBW’s inability to meet its
operating expenses, such as mortgage loan servicing payments owed to investors In Freddic Mac
securities. Ms. Kelly and her co-conspirators covered up the overdrafts by transferring or
“sweeping” overnight money from another TBW account at Colonial Bank with cxcess funds,
into the master accouni to avoid the master account falling into an overdrawn status. The
sweeping of funds gave the falsc appearance that TBW’s master account was not overdrawn.
The day after sweeping funds Ms, Kelly and her co-conspirators would cause the money to be
returned to the other account, only to have to sweep funds back into the master account at the
close of busincss that day to hide the deficit again.

By December of 2003, the size of the deficit due to the overdrafts had grown into the tens
of millions of dollars. At that time Ms. Kelly and her co-conspirators caused the deficit in
TBW’s master account at Colonial Bank to be transferred to “COLB,” a mortgage loan purchase
facility at MWLD. By this process they sought to disguise the misappropriation of tens of
millions of dollars of Colonial Bank funds to disguise TBW shortfalls or overdrafts, as payments
related to Colonial Bank’s purchase, through the COLB facility, of legitimate TBW mortgage
loans. In fact, the mortgage loans cither did not exist, or TBW had already committed to, or had
alrcady sold them to other third-party investors. As a result, these loans were nol available for
purchase by Colonial Bank. Ms. Kelly knew that she had played a role in causing Colonial Bank
to pay TBW for assets that were worthless to Colonial.

In mid-2005 Ms. Kelly and her co-conspirators caused the deficit to be moved from the
COLB facility to MWLD’s “Assignment of Trade” (AOT) facility. The AOT facility was
designed for the purchase of interests in pools of loans, which werc referred to as “Trades,” that

“ For addilional relevant information please see the following attached documents: (1) the Criminal Information
dated March 16, 2011 charging Ms. Kelly with felony conspiracy in viclation of 18 U.S.C. § 371, (2} Ms. Kelly’s
Plea Agreement dated March 16, 2011; and (3) the accompanying Statement of Facts also dated March 16, 2011.

" TBW ceased most operations during August of 2009. On August 10, 2011, TBW went out of business per its
Chapter 11 liguidation filing under bankmptey.

(W]



were in the proeess of being securitized and/or sold to third-party investors. Ms. Kelly and her
co-conspirators caused TBW to engage in sales 1o Colonial Bank of fictitious Trades purportedly
backed by pools of loans. In fact, they had no collateral hacking them. Additionally, the
conspirators caused Colonial Bank to hold in its accounting records AOT Trades backed by
assets that TBW was unable to sell (such as impaired-value loans, charged-off loans, previously
sold loans, loans in foreclosure, and real-estate owned property). Ms. Kelly and her co-
conspirators tock steps lo cover up the fictitious and impaired Trades on AOT by giving the false
appearance thal periodically the Trades were sold ta third parties. She and others engaged in this
sham to deceive others, including regulators and auditors.

The size of the deficit created by the false purchases through the COLRB facility and the
fictitious AOT Trades fluctuated during the conspiracy, at times it reached into the hundreds of
millions of dollars. On August 14, 2009, the day the Alahama State Banking Department seized
Colonial Bank the deficit in AOT was significantly more than $400 million.

. Convietion and Sentence

On March 16, 2011 Ms. Kelly pled guilty and was convicted of one felony caunt of
conspiracy in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371. Her plea acknowledged that she conspired to commit
bank fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1344, securitics fraud in violation of section 1348, and
wire fraud in violation of section 1343.5 On June 17, 2011 Ms. Kelly was sentenced to three (3)
months ol imprisonment. Additionally, Ms. Kelly was sentenced to a term of three (3) years of
supervised release following her imprisonment, which included nine (9) months of home
conlinement with clectronic monitoring.

D. Debarment

HUD debarred Ms. Kclly for a three year periad from May 6, 2011 at FHFA-OIGs
request, due 10 her conduct discussed herein. ™

¥ See Plea Agreement, 1§ 1.
® Judgment in a Criminal Case, dated June 17, 2011.

" In researching the GSA’'s System for Awards Management website (www_sam.gov) two records related to Ms.
Kelty's debarment were located. The aetive date for both is May 6, 20) 1. however there is a diserepancy as to the
termination date. One agrees with the information provided by HUD 1n its Notice of Final Delermination on
debarment, which was sent to Ms. Kelly on September 12, 2011, and slates that her debarment would run for a
three-year period beginning on May 6, 2011 and ending on May 5, 2014, The other stales that the debarment is
indefinile. Tt is possibte that the second SAM entry is an ervor of some sor1 as no other informatian has been loeated
to support the canelusion that she has been debarred by 1HUD for an indefinite period. Both records have been
provided as attachments.



1V. Argument for Suspended Counterparty Designation

The OIG believes that sufficient grounds exist for FHFA 1o issue a SCD and thereby
designate Ms. Kelly a suspended counterparty for misconduct. Specifically:

s Within the past three (3) ycars, Ms. Kelly pled guilty and was convicted of a fedcral
felony (conspiracy to commit bank fraud, sccurities {raud, and wirc fraud) directly related
not only to a mortgage business ([BW/ Ocala), but also 1o a regulated entity (Freddie
Mac).

e Also, within the past three (3) years, HUD debarred Ms. Kelly for the very conduct for
which she pled guilty.

For the foregoing reasons, the OIG belicves that any future business relationship between Ms.
Kelly and any of the regulated entities would present excessive risk to their safety and
soundness. The OIG therefore requests that FHFA designate Ms. Kelly as a suspended
counterparly, thereby permanently suspending her and any affiliated entities from entering into
future contractual relationships with the regulated entities with regard to mortgages, securities or
other lending products.

V. Contaet Information

For questions concerning the underlying facts supporting this request, or if you require
additional information, plcase contact me at (202) 730-4751.

Far questions of a legal nature, please contact FHF A-OIG Assistant Chief Counsel Mark
D. Baker at (202) 730-4041.

Exhibits:

s SCP Policy

o Ms. Kelly’s Criminal Information

» Ms, Kelly’s Plca Agreement & Related Statement of Facts
e Judgment in a Criminal Case

» Notice of Proposed Debarment from HUD

e Notice of Final Determination of Debarment from 11UD

e Two (2) SAM Rccords of Debarment

CC:

Bryan Saddler, FHFA-O1G Chief Counsel
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From: Emerzian, Peter </0=EXCHANGELABS/OU =EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=ESF50330FF35406F9FB12C708EQ5SAEB-PETER
EMERZ

To:| (b)}7)HC) Je/o=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=496974ccacal 4b90b8837a50586da048
(bX7)C) [o=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
DLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=b8169¢3529¢a423d9be960f6r5r99072] (b)(7)(C)

fo=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=510c59641615427d8a264a90c9f477b

cC:

=

:

L jo=FExchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
FYDIBOHF235PDLT )/cn =Recipients/cn =e04fc7ef76a3454bb5 14da3 1ibcabe71]_(R)(7)(C)
"Conlon, Paul </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=bb38913146504¢409c131657444fceb-Paul Conlon>";
"Febles, Rene <fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=4dcab12235064540ac7ad51bfe748bcf-Rene Febles>"

Subject: FW: SCP proposal for Teresa Kelly

Date: 2014/01/29 17:16:42

Priority: Normal

Type: Note

(b)7)(C)

Attached 1s the signed referral
Thanks for all your help
Peter

Mike: PLS file in CMS

Peter Emerzian New
Sig-DIG
From:
Sent: Wednesday, January 29, 2014 2:31 PM
To: Emerzian, Peter

Cc: Baker, Brian
Subject: SCP proposal for Teresa Kelly

Pcter,

Good afternoon, please find a suspended counterparty referral concerning former
Colonial Bank pperations supervisor Teresa Kelly attached to this e-mail. along with the
exhibits referenced in the referral. Please den’( hesitate 1o contact me 1l you have any
questions.

Best,

(b)7HC)




Assistant Chicf Counscl
Office of the Inspector General,
Federal Housing Finance Agency

400 7th Street SW

Washington, D.C. 20024

O:
E;

(b)7HC)

(b)7HC)

This c-mail communication (including any attachments) may contain legally privileged
and/or confidential information meant solely for the intended recipient. If you are not the
mmtended recipient, you should immediately stop reading this message and delete 1t from
your system. Any unauthorized reading, distribution, copying or other usc of this
communication or its attachments is strictly prohibited.

Sender:

Emerzian, Peter «</0=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/{CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=ESF50330FF35406F9FB12C708E955AEB-PETER
EMERZ >

Recipient: {bI7HC) jo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=496974ccacal4b90b8837a50586da048 {(EX7)HC)

"Cunicelli, Vic <fo=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group

; LT)/cn=Recipients{cn=b8169¢3529ea423dobe960f6F 53907 2-Victor Cuni>";
(bX7)C) [/o=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group

LT)}en=Recipients/cn=510d59641615427d8a264a00c0f4 7706 (B)(7

(B)7)NC) Jo=Exchangelabsfou=Fxchange Administrative Group

Sent Date:

(FYDIBOHF 235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=e04fc7ef76a3454bh5 14da3 1fbcabe71] (D)7 )(C) |
"Conlon, Paul <fo=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=bb38913146504c40%c131657444fceb-Paul Conlon>";
"Febles, Rene <f0=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group

{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT }/cn=Recipients/cn=4dcab 1 2235064540ac7ad5 1bfe748bc f-Rene Febles>"

2014401729 17:16:25

Delivered Date: 2014/01/29 17:16:42
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA

Alexandria Division

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ) CRIMINAL NO. 1:12-CR-96
v, ; Honorable Leonic M. Brinkema
DELTON DE ARMAS, ; Sentencing Date: June 15, 2012
Dcfendant. ;

POSITION OF THE UNITED STATES
WITH RESPECT TO SENTENCING

The United States of America, through its attorneys, Denis J. Mclnerney, Chiet, Fraud
Section of the Criminal Division of the United States Department of Justice, Patrick F. Stokes,
Deputy Chiet, and Robert A. Zink, Trial Attorney, and Neil H. MacBride, United States Attorney
for the Eastern District of Virginia, Charles F. Connolly and Paul J. Nathanson, Assistant United
States Attorneys, in accord with 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a) and the United States Sentencing
Commission, Guidelines Manual (“Guidelines” or “U.S.5.G.”) § 6A1.2 (Nov, 2010), files this
Position of the United States With Respect to Sentencing of the defendant, Delton de Armas.

For the reasons discussed herein, the government requests that the Court sentence the defendant

to a term of incarceration of 7 years.
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Backgmundl

Taylor, Bcan & Whitaker Mortgage Corp. (“TBW”) was a mortgage company based in
Ocala Florida. Colonial Bank was one of the 25 largest depository banks in the country and was
bascd in Montgomcry, Alabama. Colonial’s Mortgage Warchouse Lending Division (“MWLD™)
provided financing 1o mortgage origination companies, including TBW. De Armas joined TBW
in 2000 as the chicf financial officer. Hc reported directly to Lee Farkas, the chairman and
principal owner of TBW, until approximately 2003, at which time he began reporting to Paul
Allen, the chief executive officer of TBW.

From approximately 2002 through August 2009, Farkas and numerous co-conspirators
defrauded three banks of more than $2.9 billion, misled sharcholders of Colonial BancGroup,
Inc., and attempted 1o [raudulently obtain more than $500 million from the government’s TARP
program. As the CFO, dec Armas was aware of the financial impact the fraud scheme had on
TBW’s books, and he, along with Paul Allen and other TBW employees de Armas oversaw,
misled regulators, TBW’s auditor, banks, and investors in Ocala Funding. De Armas’s lies
contributed to losses by investors in Ocala Funding of approximately S1.5 billion and to losses
by Colonial Bank of at least $900 million.

As set out in his plea agreement, de Armas knowingly lied or caused financial records to
be falsified with regard to the assets in Ocala Funding, the valuation of TBW’s mortgage
servicing rights (“MSR”), TBW’s financial health as presented in its audited financial
statements, and TBW’s late-filing of its audited financials with Ginnie Mae in June 2009. A

brief overview of each of these schemes follows:

"n light of this Court’s familiarity with the facts of this casc, the Government includes only a
brief overview and recitation of the key facts.

Page 2 ol 14
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1. Ocala Funding. Ocala Funding was a wholly owned subsidiary of TBW that was
dcsigned to provide low-cost funding to TBW for additional mortgage loan originations. Ocala
Funding issued asset-backed commercial paper (corporate IOUs) to investors in return for cash.
Ocala Funding would then usc the cash to fund mortgage loans at TBW. Ocala Funding was
designed to be [ully collateralized and bankruptcy remote. That is, Ocala Funding was required
to have at all times more asscts (cash and mortgage loans) than liabilitics (commercial paper and
subordinated debt). If its liabilities had exceeded its assets, the investors had the right to wind
down the cntity. And, as Ocala Funding was bankruptcy remote, the investors did not have
recourse 10 TBW's assets (o make up any shortfall. Moreover, Ocala Funding cash was to be
uscd only for Ocala Funding opcrations.

When TBW ceased operations in August 2009, there were two dedicated investors in
Ocala Funding: Dcutsche Bank and BNP Paribas, which togcther owned approximately $1.75
billien of the asset-backed commercial pap(er.2 Yet Farkas, Desiree Brown (TBW's treasurer),
and other co-conspirators caused nearly all of the assets in Ocala Funding to be stripped out and
used to pay TBW expenses, including mandatory servicing advances Lo investors in mortgage
bonds TBW had sold.

Although de Armas did not participate in the misappropriations ol cash from Ocala
Funding, Sean Ragland. a TBW financial analyst who tracked diversions from the entity,
informed de Armas that Ocala Funding’s money was being used for TBW purposes. As TBW's
CFO and the person responsible for Ocala Funding’s accounting, de Armas also was well aware

ol Ocala Funding’s significant collateral shortlall. By September 2006 the deficit was as much

2 Prior to Junc 30, 2008, there were numerous financial institutions that invested in Ocala
Funding through commercial paper purchases.

Page 3 ol 14
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as $150 million; by September 2007, it was approximately S500 million; by June 2008, it was
morc than $700 million; and by August 2009, it was approximately $1.5 billion.

De Armas, Allen {TBW's CEO), and Ragland devised a plan to hide the Ocala Funding
collatcral shortfall from its investors. With de Armas’s and Allen’s knowledge and direction,
Ragland falsified a monthly financial statements provided to Ocala Funding investors that
inflated cash or the value of mortgage loans in order to hide the cnormous, growing collateral
shortfalls. Each month after that, Ragland (or another TBW employee) continued to similarly
falsify the financial statcments and scnd them by ecmail to the investors. Not only did De Armas
know this was happening {rom conversations with Ragland, he was copied on the emails sent to
the investors attaching the false financial statements. As a result of the lics contained in the
financial statements, by August 2009 Deutsche Bank and BNP Paribas believed they held
approximatcly $1.75 billion of fully collatcralized commercial paper when, in fact, Ocala
Funding held cash and loans worth only approximately $150 million. Deutsche Bank and BNP
Paribas have lost approximately $1.5 billion due to the scheme.”

2. MSR Valuations

TBW relied heavily on a working capital line of credit administered by Colonial Bank (as
the head of a nine-bank syndicate) to [und its operations. As collateral for the line, it pledged
mortgage servicing rights (MSR), and it periodically provided MSR valuation reports prepared

by third parties to Colonial Bank. It the MSR valuations {ell below a specific percentage value

* One of the ways TBW inflated assets held by Ocala Funding was it reported loans sold to
Freddic Mac as still being asscts on its as well as Colonial Bank’s books. As a result of the false
information sent to Colonial Bank, it believed it had sole ownership of approximately $900
million of mortgage loans that, in {act, already had been sold to Freddie Mac. De Armas’s role
in sending inflated collateral information to Ocala Funding investors helped perpetuate the fraud
scheme and thus contributed to Colonial Bank’s losses. Duc to the size of the financial lossces,
Colonial Bank’s $900 million loss aniount does not change de Armas’s Guidelines calculation.

Page d ol 14
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ol the working capital extended 1o TBW, Colonial Bank would issue a margin call and TBW
would have to pay down the working capital linc of credit to mect its collateral threshold.

To avoid margin calls, De Armas and other TBW executives periodically inflated
mortgage loan values it held, at times by billions of dollars, in order to inflatc the MSR
valuations conducted by third parties. As a result, these lies exposed the banking syndicate
providing the working capital linc of credit to significant risk of loss.

3. False TBW Financial Statements

In the spring of 2008 dc Armas, Ragland, and other financial cmploycces realized that
TBW had a significant imbalance 1n its books. To correct the imbalance, de Armas directed
Ragland, a financial analyst, to inflatc TBW’s a particular account rcecivable, the loan
participation receivable, by more than $400 million. This gave the false appearance that TBW’s
books werc in balance and that it had morc asscts than it in fact had. As a result, TBW’s audited
financial stalements were materially inflated, and, as de Armas knew, they were provided Lo
banks, investors in Ocala Funding, Ginnie Mae, and Freddie Mac. A financial executive at a
bank that invested in Ocala Funding requested an explanation for the contents and size ol the
loan participation receivable. De Armas and Allen concocted a false explanation to give the
appearance that the figure was legitimate and provided the misleading information to him.

4. False Statements to HUD

In mid-June 2009, Paul Allen sent a materially misleading letter 1o Ginnie Mae to explain
why its audited financial statements had yet to be filed. De Armas assisted Allen by editing the
letter, knowing that the letter was misleading. Allen and de Armas sought to mislead Ginnie
Mae by leading it to believe that the delay was due to technical accounting issues when, in fact,

they knew the delay resulted from its auditor, Deloitte & Touche, having stopped the audit due 1o

Page 5ol 14
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concerns about TBW’s relationship with Colonial Bank and, at Deloitte’s insistence, the
rctention of a law firm to conduct an intcrnal investigation. Thesc lies mattered to Ginnic Mac.
As one of Ginnie Mae’s larger mortgage company customers, Ginnie Mae needed TBW's
audited financial statcments to asscss TBW’s financial health and Ginnic Mac’s risk cxposurc,
Argument

As this Court is aware, following the Supreme Court’s decision in United States v.
Booker, the Guidelines are now advisory. United States v. Booker, 343 U.S. 220, 261 (2003).
As such, “[i]n the wake of Booker . . . the discretion of the sentencing court is no longer bound
by the range prescribed by the guidelines.” United States v. Hughes, 401 F.3d 540, 546 (4™ Cir.
2005). The Supreme Court subsequently clarified that this means that the sentencing court “may
not presume that the Guidelines range is reasonable.” Gall v. United States, 552 U.S. 38, 50
(2007), guoted in Nelson v. United States, 555 US 350, 352 (2009). Nevertheless, “sentencing
courts are not left with unguided and unbounded sentencing discretion.” United States v. Green,
436 F.3d 449, 435 (4-tIl Cir. 2006). Instead, at sentencing a court “must first calculate the
Guidelines range.” United States v. Nelson, 129 S, Ct. at 891; see also United States v. Hughes,
401 F.3d at 546 (holding that a sentencing court is still required to ‘consult [the] Guidelines and
take them into account when sentencing.”) (quoting United States v. Booker, 542 U.S. at 264).
After appropriately calculating the Guidelines, a sentencing court must then consider the
Guidelines range, as well as the sentencing factors set forth m 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a), and
determine a sentence that is appropriate for the individual defendant. United States v. Nelson,

129 S. Ct. at 891-92, see also United States v. Hughes, 401 F.3d at 546.

Page 6ol 14
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L THE APPROPRIATE GUIDELINES RANGE

De Armas pleaded guilty to a two-count criminal information. Count one charged him
with conspiracy to commit bank fraud and wire fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371. Count two
charged him with false statements in violation ol 18 U.S.C. § 1001. Both counts have a five-year
statutory maximum pecriod of incarccration. The Probation Officer found, and the partics
stipulated in the plea agreement, that the two counts group for purposes of determining the
appropriatc Guidelines level. See U.S.S.G. § 3D1.2(c).

The Probation Officer calculates that Guidelines offense level 1o be 37, In particular, the
Probation Officer includes a basc offense level of six, a 30-level enhancement for a loss of more
than $400 million, a two-level enhancement for sophisticated means, and a three-level reduction
for acceptance of responsibility. De Armas stipulated to these enhancements in his plea
agreement.

The government also believes that de Armas should be assessed a two-level adjustment
for his role as a supervisor and manager of Sean Ragland in the offense. De Armas oversaw
Ragland’s creation and dissemination of false financial statements to Ocala Funding investors
and directed Ragland’s inflation of the loan participation receivable. Although Paul Allen, who
received a three-level role adjustment, also played a role in directing Ragland’s falsification of
the financial statements sent to Ocala Funding investors, de Armas was Ragland’s direct
supervisor. Including a two-level role adjustment, de Armas’s Guidelines total offense level
would be 39. The sentencing range would be 262 to 327 months.

Although de Armas faces a five-year statutory maximum per count of conviction,
U.S.8.G. § 5G1.2(d) of the Guidelines directs the Court to impose any periods of incarceration

consecutively to give maximum etfect to the estahlished Guidelines’ range. See, U.S.S5.G.

Page 7 ol 14
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§ 5G1.2, comment n.1 (“Il no count carries an adequate statutory maximum, consecutive
scntences arc to be imposed to the extent necessary to achieve the total punishment.”). Thus, the

statutory maximumn is ten years’ incarceration.

IL. THE 18 U.S.C. § 3553(A) FACTORS

Aftcr calculating the appropriate Guidcelines range, “the court must ‘determine whether a
sentence within that range . . . serves the factors set forth in § 3553(a) and, if not, select a
sentence [within statutory limits] that does serve those factors.” United States v. Moreland, 437
F.3d 424, 432 (4th Cir. 2006) (quoting Green, 436 F.3d at 455). Scction 3553(a) dirccets the
sentencing court 1o consider various factors including the nature and circumstances ol the
offense and characteristics of the defendant. In addition, § 3553(a) states that the court must
consider other factors, including the need for the sentence “to reflect the seriousness of the
offense, to promote respect for law, and to provide just punishment for the oflense; [and] to
afford adequate deterrence to criminal conduct.” 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a)(2)(A) & (B).

Al A Sentence of 7 Years Incarceration Is Appropriate and Reasonable in Light of
the Nature of Defendant s Criminal Conduct

One key factor that the Court must consider is the nature and circumstances of the
offense and the history and characteristics of the defendant. See 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a)(1). The
defendant in this case participated in a massive fraud scheme, one of the longest-running and
largest bank-fraud operations in history. While not involved in the fraudulent diversions of
funds from Colonial Bank and Ocala Funding, de Armas actively participated in hiding the
massive collateral shortfall in Ocala Funding from its investors; misled the Colonial Bank-led
syndicate about TBW’s MSR valuations, thus exposing the banks to significant risk; directed a
subordinate to inflate TBW’s assets by more than $400 million; and helped Paul Allen deceive

Ginnie Mae about TBW’s audit delays.
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As CFO ol one of the country’s largest private mortgage companies and a certified public
accountant, dc Armas participated in hiding billions of dollars of losscs from investors, banks,
regulators, and auditors. His role in the scheme played a significant part in major {inancial
institutions losing hundreds of millions of dollars.

And, yet, in his statements to the probation officer, de Armas appears to minimize his
role in the scheme. He suggests he was “doing [his] best, which was not cnough to detect or
prevent a massive [raud.” PSR, at 20. He claims he thought Sean Ragland was “crying wolf™
when he pointed out the collateral shortfalls. De Armas finds fault with himsclf for “[a]ll of this
because I was not smart enough, informed enough, or brave enough to put a stop to it.” Id. He
cven includes a list of principles in which he further skirts responsibility for lics he told. PSR, at
22. He suggests he only told “technical” lies. PSR, principle #9 at 22. He seems 1o deny
criminal culpability when he writes that “[p]Jromulgating or repeating a lic, cven 1if you don’t now
it’s a lie, 1s still lying.” PSR, principle 17 at 23. And, to cap off his minimization, he declares
that ““|a]greeing that something can he proven in court is not the same thing as agreeing that you
did something.” PSR, principle 20 at 24.

The evidence is unequivocal, and De Armas’s admissions in his statement of facts are
also clear: de Armas knew he and others were lying to investors, banks, regulators, and auditors
to cover up massive deficits in TBW and Ocala Funding. As a CFO and certified public
accountant, there can be little question he knew his actions were criminal and harmful.

De Armas’s important — although limited — role in one of the largest fraud schemes in
recent history warrants a substantial sentence, and we believe imposing a sentence of 7 years
appropriately reflects the nature and circumstances of the crime and his history and

characteristics.

Page 9ol 14



Case 1:12-cr-00096-LMB Document 17 Filed 06/08/12 Page 10 of 14 PagelD# 334

B. A Sentence of 7 Years Is Necessary to Provide A Reasonable Deterrent Factor

The Court must also consider the nced for the sentence imposcd to reflect the seriousness
ol the offense, promote respect for the law, provide just punishment for the offense, and afford
adequate deterrence, See 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a)(2). Fraud cascs arc scrious offenscs, and thosc
who commit such offenses deserve particularly severe sentences because the nature and
complcxity of the fraud they commit requires such significant time and resources to detect,
prosecute, and deter. A 7 year sentence would appropriately reflect the seriousness of the
oftensc and provide just punishment in this casc.

As this Court recognized at the sentencing of co-conspirator Ray Bowman, general
dcterrence is a key factor that the court must consider when evaluating the appropriate period of
incarceration in a fraud case. This is particularly true for de Armas, who like Paul Allen and Ray
Bowman, was a very scnior exceutive of TBW and was awarce of fraudulent activity there for
numerous years. Although de Armas was shielded from much of the underlying fraudulent
activity, he knew his lies exposed major financial institutions to enormous risk of loss (and actual
losses of more than 52.4 billion). As CFQO, de Armas could have “blown the whistle™ at any
time. Instead, he chose to cover up the fraud scheme for years on end through lies to investors
and others. Imposing a sentence of 7 years would alford the necessary general deterrence, as
required by 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a}2}B). It would also impress upon others that participation in
any fraud scheme [or years on end will not be treated lightly or tolerated.

General deterrence alone can justify lengthy sentences, even where such long sentences
are not necessary (o achieve specific deterrence. United States v. Sagendorf, 445 F.3d 515, 518
(1™ Cir. 2006). Fraud offenses are serious, and a lengthy sentence will ensure that would-be

violators do not receive the message that the gain to be derived {from defrauding {inancial
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institutions, shareholders, or the government outweighs the potential consequences. Here, where
the defendant facilitated a massive fraud schemc over a scrics of ycars, a significant sentencc is
necessary 1o send a strong deterrence message 1o others.

It the sentence truly is to “reflect the scriousness of the offense,” “promote respect for the
law,” “provide just punishment for the olfense,” and “alford adequate deterrence to criminal
conduct” it must be substantial. See 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a)(2). This is particularly truc here in
light of the size of the fraud scheme, its duration, and the substantial damage it caused. An
insubstantial scntence would signal that the type of long-standing, cgregious fraud in which the
defendant engaged is somehow deserving of special consideration [rom the Court. Moreover, if
individuals who dcfraud financial institutions and corporate sharcholders and attempt to defraud
the United States believe that the penalty for doing so is trivial, then no disincentive exists 1o
prevent those who are best-cquipped with the means and ability to commit fraud from doing so.
A sentence of 7 years would satisty the requirements of § 3553(a)(2).

C. The Need to Avoid Unwarranted Sentencing Disparities

The Government’s recommendation that the Court impose a sentence of 7 years takes
into account sentences already imposed for his co-conspirators. Although de Armas was not the
most culpable co-conspirator, he was not the least culpable either. Indeed, de Armas played a
significant role in misleading investors, banks, regulators, and auditors, ultimately contributing
1o the loss of $2.4 billion by three banks. Moreover, six of de Armas’s co-conspirators
cooperated extensively with the government’s investigation and testified against Farkas. The
sentences they each received include reductions based on their substantial assistance. The
governmient’s request for 7 years takes into account both de Armas’s role in the scheme and the

cooperation of six of his co-conspirators, in light of which any perceived sentencing disparity is
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in fact permissible. See, e.g., United States v. Quinn, 359 F.3d 666, 682 (4-th Cir. 2004)
(approving significant prison term for defendants who went to trial in spite of much lower
stipulated loss and only six months home confinement [or defendant who pled guilty); United
States v. Boscarino, 437 F.3d 634, 638 (?m Cir. 2006) (rcjecting defendant’s argument of
unwarranted disparity in relation to more-culpable defendant who cooperated with the
government; “a sentencing difference is not a forbidden “disparity” if it is justificd by legitimate
considerations, such as rewards [or cooperation™).

D. Restitution

The government will separately file a briel setting forth its restitution position.

Conclusion
Based on the [oregoing, the United States believes that a sentence of 7 is reasonable and

accounts for cach of the factors sct forth in 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a).
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Respectfully submitted,

Neil H. MacBride
United States Attorney

By: /s/
Charles F. Connolly
Paul Nathanson
Assistant United States Attorneys
U.S. Attorney’s Office
2100 Jamieson Avenue
Alexandria, VA 22314
Phone: (703} 299-3700
Fax: (703) 299-3981
Email: Charles.Connelly @usdoj.gov
Paul Nathanson® usdoj.gov

Respectfully suhmitted,

Denis J. Mclnerney
United States Department of Justice
Chief, Criminal Division, Fraud Section

By: /s/
Patrick F. Stokes
Deputy Chiefl
Robert Zink
Trial Attorney
U.S. Department of Justice
1400 New York Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20005
Ph; 202.305.4232
Fax: 202.514.7021
Patrick.Stokes2 @ usdoj.gov
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
[ hercby certify that on the 8™ day of June 2012, I filed clectronically the forcgoing
Position of the United States with Respect o Sentencing using the CM/ECF system, which will
scnd a notification of such filing (NEF) to the following;

F. Andrew Carroll, III, Esq.
524 King Street

Alcxandria, VA 22320-0888
703-836-1000

dcarroll @landclark.com

Karcn Moran
Senior U.S. Probation Officer
Karen_Moran @ vaep.uscourts.gov

fs/
Charles F. Connolly
Assistant United States Allorney
U.S. Attorney’s Office
2100 Jamieson Avenue
Alexandria, VA 22314
Phone: (703) 299-3771
Fax: (703) 209-3981
Email: Charles.Connolly @usdoj.gov
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA
Alcxandria Division
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
V.

CRIMINAL NO. I:1lcr
DELTON DE ARMAS

R T

Defendant.

PLEA AGREEMENT

Denis J. Mclnerney, Chief, Fraud Section of the Criminal Division of the United States
Department of Justice (“Fraud Scction™), Patrick F. Stokes, Deputy Chicf, Robert Zink, Trial
Attorney, and Neil H. MacBride, United States Attorney for the Eastern District of Virginia,
Charles F. Connolly and Paul .I. Nathanson, Assistant United Statcs Attorneys, and the
defendant, DELTON DE ARMAS, and the defendant’s counsel have entered into an agreement
pursuant to Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. The terms of the agreement are
as follows:
L. Offense and Maximum Penalties

The defendant agrees to plead guilty to a two-count criminal information charging the
defendant with onc count of conspiracy (in violation of Titlc 18, United States Code, Scetion
371) to commit bank fraud (in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1344) and wire
fraud (in violation of Title 18, Unitcd States Code, Scetion 1343); and onc count of falsc
statements (in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001). The maximum penalties
for the conspiracy count arc a maximum tcrm of five years of imprisonment, a fine of $250,000

or twice the amount of the loss or gross gain, full restitution and forfeiture, a special assessment,



and three years of supervised release. The maximum penaltics for the false statements count are
a maximum term of five years of imprisonment, a fine of $250,000, full restitution and forfeiture,
a special assessment, and three years of supervised release. The defendant understands that these
supervised release terms are n addition to any prison term the defendant may receive, and that a
violation of a term of supervised release could result in the defendant being returned to prison for
the full term of supervised release.
2. Factual Basis for the Plea

The defendant will plead guilty because the defendant is in fact guilty of the charged
offenses. The defendant admits the facts set forth in the statement of facts filed with this plea
agreement and agrees that those facts establish guilt of the offenses charged beyond a reasonable
doubt. The statement of facts, which is hereby incorporated into this plea agreement, constitutes
a stipulation of facts for purposes of Sections 1B1.2(a) and 6B1.4 of the United States Sentencing
Guidelines (U.S.8.G. or Scntencing Guidelines).
3. Assistance and Advicc of Counscl

The defendant is satisfied that the defendant’s attorney has rendered effective assistance.
The defendant understands that by entering mto this agreement, defendant surrenders certain
rights as provided in this agrecment. The defendant understands that the rights of criminal

defendants include the following:

a. the right to plead not guilty and to persist in that plea;
b. the right to a jury trial;
C. the right to be represented by counsel - and if necessary have the court appoint

counsel - at trial and at every other stage of the proceedings; and



d. the right at trial to confront and cross-cxaminc adverse witnesses, to be protected
from compelled self-incrimination, to testitfy and present evidence, and to compel
the attendance of witnesses.

4. Role of the Court and the Probation Office

The defendant understands that the Court has jurisdiction and authority to imposc any
sentence within the statutory maximum described above but that the Court will determine the
defendant’s actual sentence in accordanec with Title 18, United States Codc, Scetion 3553(a).
The defendant understands that the Court has not yet determined a sentence and that any estimate
of the advisory scnteneing range under the U.S. Senteneing Commission’s Scnteneing
Guidelines Manual the defendant may have received from the defendant’s counsel, the United
States, or the Probation Office, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not binding on the United
States, the Probation Office, or the Court. Additionally, pursuant to the Supreme Court’s
decision in United States v. Booker, 543 U.S. 220, 261 (2005), the Court, after considering the
factors set forth in Title 18, United States Code, Section 3553(a), may inpose a sentence above
or below the advisory sentencing range, subject only to review by higher courts for
reasonableness. The United States makes no promise or representation concerning what
sentenee the defendant will receive, and the defendant cannot withdraw a guilty plea based upon
the actual sentence.
5. Waiver of Appeal, FOIA and Privacy Act Rights

The defendant also understands that Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742 affords a
defendant the right to appeal the sentenec imposed. Nonetheless, the defendant knowingly
waives the right to appeal the conviction and any sentence within the statutory maximum

described above (or the manner in which that sentencc was determined) on the grounds set forth



in Title 18, United States Code, Scetion 3742 or on any ground whatsocver, in exchange for the
concessions made by the United States n this plea agreement. This agreement does not affect
the rights or obligations of the United States as sct forth in Title 18, United States Code, Scetion
3742(b). The defendant also hereby waives all rights, whether asserted directly or by a
representative, to request or receive from any department or agency of the United States any
records pertaining to the investigation or prosecution of this case, including without limitation
any rccords that may be sought under the Freedom of Information Act, Title 5, United States
Code, Section 552, or the Privacy Act, Title 5, United States Code, Section 552a.

6. Recommended Sentencing Factors

Based upon the information now available to the United States (including representations
by the defense), the defendant’s Criminal History Category is onc. In accordance with
Rule 11{c)()(B) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, the United States and the defendant
will recommend to the Court that the following provisions of the Sentencing Guidcelines apply:

a. pursuant to U.S.S.G. Section 2B1.1(a)(2), the base offense level for the conduct
charged in Count One is 6 and for Count Two is 6;

b. pursuant to U.S.S.G. Section 2B1.1(b)(1)(P), the conduct charged in Count One
resulted 1n a loss of more than $400,000,000.00 and qualifies for a 30-level upward
enhancement;

C. pursuant to U.S.S.G. Section 2B1.1(b)9), the conduct charged in Count One
involved sophisticated means and qualifies for a 2-level upward enhancement;

d. pursuant to U.S.5.G. Seetion 3D1.2(c), Count Two groups with Count One; and

e. pursuant to U.S.S.G. Section 3EL.1(b), the defendant has assisted the government

in the investigation and prosccution of the defendant’s own misconduct by timely notifying



authoritics of the defendant’s intention to center a plea of guilty, thercby permitting the
government to avoid preparing for trial and permitting the govemment and the Court to allocate
their resourcces cfficiently. If the defendant qualifics for a two-level decreasc in offensce level
pursuant to U.S.8.G. Section 3E1.1(a) and the offense level prior Lo the operation of that section
is a level 16 or greater, the government agreces to file, pursuant to U.S.S.G. Scction 3E1.1(b), a
molion prior to, or at the time of, sentencing for an additional one-level decrease in the
defendant’s offense level.

f. No agreements regarding the applicability of any other Sentencing Guidelines
provision have been reached, and the partics reserve the right to arguc for or against the
applicability of any other Guidelines provision at sentencing.

7. Venue

The defendant waives any challenge to venue n the Eastern District of Virginia. The
defendant understands that Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure [8 affords the defendant the right
to have his offenses prosecuted n the district in which the offenses were committed. The
defendant knowingly conscents to have the offenses set forth in the criminal information
prosecuted in the Eastern District of Virginia.

8. Special Assessment

Before sentencing in this case, the defendant agrees to pay a mandatory special
asscssment of one hundred dollars ($100.00) per count of conviction.
9. Payment of Monetary Penalties

The defendant understands and agrees that, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code,
Section 3613, whatever monetary penalties are imposed by the Court will be due and payable

immediately and subject to immediate enforcement by the United States as provided for in



Scction 3613, Furthcrmore, the defendant agrees to provide all of his financial information to
the United States and the Probation Office and, if requested, to participale in a pre-sentencing
debtor’s examination. If the Court imposes a schedule of payments, the defendant understands
that the schedule of payments is merely a minimum schedule of payments and not the only
method, nor a limitation on the mcthods, available to the United States to enforee the judgment.
[f the defendant is incarcerated, the defendant agrees 1o participate in the Bureau of Prisons’
Inmate Financial Responsibility Program, regardless of whether the Court specifically dircets
pariicipation or imposes a schedule of payments.
10. Restitution for Offense of Conviction

The defendant agrees 1o the entry of a Restitution Order for such amount as may be
determined by the Court. At this time, the defendant understands that the Government believes
the following victims have suffered the following losses: [To be determined]
1. Limited Immunity from Further Prosecution

The Fraud Section and the Criminal Divisions of the United States Attorneys” Offices for
the Eastern District of Virginia and the Middle District of Florida, will not further criminally
prosecute the detendant for the specific conduct deseribed in the mformation or statement of
facts or rclated conduct. The defendant understands that this agreement is binding only upon the
Fraud Section and the Criminal Divisions of the United States Attorneys’ Offices for the Eastern
District of Virginia and Middle District of Florida. This agreement does not bind the civil
divisions of the United States Department of Justice, the United States Attorneys’ Offices for the
Eastern District of Virginia or Middle District of Florida, or any other United States Attorney’s

Oftice. Nor does 1t bind any other Section of the Department of Justice, nor does it bind any



othcr state, or local, or fedceral prosceutor. It also docs not bar or compromisc any civil, tax, or

administrative claim pending or that might be made against the defendant.

[2.

Defendant’s Cooperation

The defendant agrees 1o cooperate fully and truthfully with the United States, and provide

all information known to the defendant regarding any criminal activity as requested by the

government. In that regard:

a. The defendant agrees to testify truthfully and complctely as a witness before any
grand jury or in any other judicial or administrative proceeding when called upon 1o do so
by the United States.

b. The defendant agrees to be reasonably available for debriefing and pre-trial
confcrences as the United States may require.

C. The defendant agrees to provide all documents, records, writings, or materials of
any kind in the defendant’s posscssion or under the defendant’s care, custody, or control
relating directly or indirectly to alt areas of inquiry and mvestigation.

d. The defendant agrees that the Statement of Facts is limited to information to
support the plea. The defendant will provide more detailed facts relating to this case
during cnsuing debricfings.

e. The defendant 1s hereby on notice that the defendant may not violate any federal,
statc, or local criminal law while cooperating with the government, and that the
government will, in its discretion, consider any such violation in evaluating whether to
file a motion for a downward departurc or reduction of sentence.

f. Nothing in this agreement places any obligation on the government to seek the

defendant’s cooperation or assistance.



13. Use of Information Provided by the Defendant Under This Agreement

The United States will not use any truthful information provided pursuant to this
agrecement in any criminal prosccution against the defendant in the Eastern District of Virginia,
except in any prosecution for a crime of violence or conspiracy to commut, or aiding and
abetting, a crime of violence (as defined in Title 18 United States Code, Scetion 16). Pursuant to
U.S.8.G. Section 1B1.8, no truthful information that the defendant provides under this agreement
will be used in determining the applicable guideline range, cxcept as provided in Scetion
1B1.8(b). Nothing in this plea agreement, however, restricts the Court’s or Probation Officer’s
access to information and records in the possession of the United States. Furthermore, nothing in
this agreement prevents the government in any way from prosecuting the defendant should the
defendant knowingly provide false, untruthful, or perjurious information or testimony, or from
using information provided by the defendant in furtherance of any forfeiture action, whether
criminal or civil, administrative or judicial. The United States will bring this plea agreement and
the full extent of the defendant’s cooperation to the attention of other prosecuting offices if
requested.
14. Prosccution in Other Jurisdictions

The Fraud Scction and the Criminal Division of the United States Attorney’s Office for
the Eastern District of Virginia will not contact any other state or federal prosecuting jurisdiction
and voluntarily turn over truthful information that the defendant provides under this agreement to
aid a prosecution of the defendant in that jurisdiction. Should any other prosecuting jurisdiction
attempt to usc truthful information the defendant provides pursuant to this agreement against the
defendant, the Fraud Section and the Criminal Division of the United States Attorney’s Office

for Eastern District of Virginia agree, upon request, to contact that jurisdiction and ask that



Jurisdiction to abide by the immunity provisions of this plca agreement. Prior to turning over
any information, the Fraud Section or United States Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of
Virginia will contact undersigned counscl for the defendant in order to permit the defendant the
opportunily to contact the requesting jurisdiction and speak with that jurisdiction about 1ts
request. The partics understand that the prosecuting jurisdiction retains the discrction over
whether 1o use such information.
15. Defendant Must Provide Full, Complete and Truthful Cooperation

This plea agreement is not conditioned upon charges being brought against any other
individual. This plea agrcement is not conditioned upon any outcome in any pending
investigation. This plea agreement is not conditioned upon any resull 1n any future prosecution
which may occur becausce of the defendant’s cooperation. This plea agreement is not
conditioned upon any result in any future grand jury presentation or trial involving charges
resulting from this investigation. This plea agreement is conditioned upon the defendant
providing full, complete and truthful cooperation.
16. Motion for a Downward Departure

The parties agree that the United States reserves the right to seek any departure from the
applicablc sentencing guidcelines, pursuant to Scction SK 1.1 of the Sentencing Guidelines and
Policy Statements, or any reduction of sentence pursuant to Rule 35(b) of the Federal Rules of
Criminal Procedure, if, in its sole discretion, the United States determines that such a departure
or reduction of sentence 1s appropriate.
17.  The Defendant’s Obligations Regarding Assets Subject to Forfeiture

The defendant agrees to identify all assets over which the defendant exercises or

cxercisced control, directly or indireetly, within the past cight years, or in which the defendant has



or had during that timc any financial interest. The defendant agrees to take all steps as requested
by the United States Lo obiain from any other parties by any lawful means any records of assels
owned at any timc by the defendant. The defendant agrees to undergo any polygraph
exannnation the United States may choose 1o administer concerning such assets and to provide
and/or consent to the releasc of the defendant’s tax returns for the previous six years. Defendant
agrees lo forfeil to the United States all of the defendant’s interests in any asset of a value of
more than $1,000 that, within the last cight years, the defendant owned, or in which the
defendant maintained an interest, the ownership of which the defendant fails to disclose to the
United States in accordance with this agreement.
18. Forfeiture Agreement

The defendant agrees to forfeit all interests in any fraud-related assct that the defendant
owns or over which the defendant exercises control, directly or indirectly, as well as any
property that is traccable to, derived from, fungible with, or a substitute for property that
constitutes the proceeds of his offense 1f in fact, and to the extent that, the defendant received
asscts as part of the commission of the offensc. The defendant further agrees to waive all interest
n the asset(s) m any admimistrative or judicial forfeiture proceeding, whether crimmal or civil,
statc or federal. 1f the Court deems forfeiture to be appropriate, the defendant agrees to consent
to the entry of orders of forfeiture for such property and waives the requirements of Federal
Rules of Criminal Procedure 32.2 and 43(a) regarding notice of the forfeiture in the charging
mstrument, announcement of the forfeiture at sentencing, and mcorporation of the forfeiture in
the judgment. The defendant understands that the forfeiture of asscts is part of the sentenee that
may be imposed in this case. The Fraud Section and the Criminal Division of the United States

Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of Virginia agree to recommend to the Department of
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Justice, Criminal Division, Assct Forfeiture and Moncy Laundering Scction that any monics
obtlamed from the defendant through forfeiture be transferred to the Clerk to distribute to the
victims of the offense in accordance with any restitution order entered in this casc
19. Waiver of Further Review of Forfeiture

The defendant further agrees to waive all constitutional and statutory challenges in any
manner (including direct appeal, habeas corpus, or any other means) to any forfeiture carried out
in accordance with this Plea Agreement on any grounds, including that the forfeiture constitutes
an excessive fine or punishment. The defendant also waives any failure by the Court 1o advise
the defendant of any applicable forfeiture at the time the guilty plea is accepted as required by
Rule 11{b)(1){]}. The defendant agrees to take all steps as requested by the United States to pass
clear title to forfeitable asscts to the United States, and to testify truthfully in any judicial
forfeiture proceeding. The defendant understands and agrees that all property covered by this
agreement 1s subjeet to forfeiture as proceeds of illegal conduct, property facilitating illegal
conduct, property involved in illegal conduct giving rise to forfeiture, and substitute assets for
property otherwise subject to forfeiture if in fact, and to the cxtent that, the defendant reccived
bank fraud assets as part of the commission of the offense.
20. Breach of the Plea Agreement and Remedies

This agreement is effective when signed by the defendant, the defendant’s attorney, and
an attorney for the United States. The defendant agrees to entry of this plea agreement at the
date and time scheduled with the Court by the United States (in consultation with the defendant’s
attorney). If the defendant withdraws from this agreement, or commits or attempts to commit
any additional federal, state or local crimes, or intentionally gives materially false, incomplete, or

mislcading testimony or information, or otherwise violates any provision of this agreement, then:
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a. The United States will be relcased from its obligations under this agreement,
including any obligation 10 seek a downward departure or a reduction in sentence. The
defendant, however, may not withdraw the guilty plea entered pursuant to this agrecment;
b. The defendant will be subject 1o prosecution for any federal criminal violation,
including, but not limited to, perjury and obstruction of justice, that is not time-barred by
the applicable statute of limitations on the date this agreement is signed. Notwithstanding
the subscquent expiration of the statute of limitations, in any such prosccution, the
defendant agrees to waive any statute-of-limitations defense; and

C. Any prosccution, including the prosceution that is the subject of this agreement,
may be premised upon any information provided, or stalemenis made, by the defendant,
and all such information, statements, and leads derived therefrom may be used against the
defendant. The defendant waives any right to claim that statements made before or after
the date of this agreement, including the statement of facts accompanying this agreement
or adopted by the defendant and any other statements made pursuant to this or any other
agreement with the United States, should be excluded or suppressed under Fed. R. Evid.
410, Fed. R. Crim. P. 11(f), the Sentencing Guidelines or any other provision of the

Constitution or federal law.

Any alleged breach of this agreement by either party shall be determined by the Court in an

appropriatc procceding at which the defendant’s disclosures and documentary evidenee shall be

admissible and at which the moving party shall be required to establish a breach of the plea

agreement by a prepondcerance of the evidence. The procecding established by this paragraph

does not apply, however, to the decision of the United States whether to file a motion based on

“substantial assistance” as that phrasc is used in Rule 35(b) of the Fedceral Rules of Criminal
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Procedure and Seetion 5K 1.1 of the Sentencing Guidelines and Policy Statements. The
defendant agrees that the decision whether to file such a motion rests in the sole discretion of the
United States.
21. Nature of the Agreement and Modifications

This written agrcement constitutes the complete plea agreement between the United
States, the defendant, and the defendant’s counsel. The defendant and his attorney acknowledge
that no threats, promiscs, or representations have been made, nor agreements reached, other than
those set forth in writing in this plea agreement, to cause the defendant to plead guilty. Any
modification of this plea agreement shall be valid only as set forth in writing in a supplemcental

or revised plea agreement signed by all parties.

Denis J. Mclnerney
Chicf, Criminal Division, Fraud Scction
United States Department of Justice

By:
Patrick F. Stokcs, Deputy Chief
Robert Zink, Trial Attorney
Neil H. MacBride
United States Attorney
By:

Charles F. Connolly
Paul J. Nathanson
Assistant United Statcs Attorncys

13



Defendant’s Signature: | hercby agrec that | have consulted with my attorney and fully

undersiand all rights with respect to the pending criminal information. Further, I fully
understand all rights with respect to Title 18, United States Code, Scetion 3553 and the
provisions of the Sentencing Guidelines Manual that may apply in my case. | have read this plea
agrcement and carcfully reviewed every part of it with my attorncy. | understand this agreement

and voluntarily agree to 1t.

Date:

Delion de Armas
Defendant

Defense Counsel Signature: Tam counsel for the defendant in this case. [ have fully

explained to the defendant the defendant’s rights with respect to the pending information.
Further, [ have reviewed Title 18, United States Code, Scetion 3553 and the Sentencing
Guidelines Manual, and I have fully explained to the defendant the provisions that may apply in
this casc. | have carcfully revicwed cvery part of this plea agreement with the defendant. To my
knowledge, the defendant’s decision to enter into this agreement is an informed and voluntary

ang,

Datc:

Drew Carroll, Esq.,
Counscl for the Defendant
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR TIIE
EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA
Alexandria Division

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA )
)
V. )

) CRIMINAL NO. I:1lecr
DELTON DE ARMAS, )
)
Dcfendant. )

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The United States and the defendant, DELTON DE ARMAS, agree that had this matter
procceded to trial the United States would have proven the facts sct forth in this Statement of
Facts beyond a reasonable doubt. Unless otherwise stated, the time periods for the facts set forth
herein arc at all imes relevant to the charges in the Information.

L. OVERVIEW

1. In or about Junc 2000, DE ARMAS joincd Taylor, Bcan & Whitaker Mortgage
Corp. (TBW), in Ocala, Florida, as its Chief Financial Officer. DE ARMAS was licensed as a
certified public accountant in or around 2004, DE ARMAS rcported to Lec Farkas, the Chairman
of TBW, and later to the Chief Executive Officer, Paul Allen.

2. From in or about 2005 through in or about August 2009, co-conspirators, including
DE ARMAS, engaged in a scheme to defraud investors in Ocala Funding. One of the goals of the
scheme to defraud was to mislead investors and auditors about Ocala Funding’s asscts. This
scheme allowed certain individuals at TBW to misappropriate over $1 billion in collateral from
Ocala Funding. Although DE ARMAS was not involved in the misappropriation of the funds, in

participating in the scheme described below, DE ARMAS knowingly and intentionally



participated in the 1ssuance of falsc financial reports which overstated the asscts in Ocala Funding
in order to mislead investors in Ocala Funding to invest in the facility and/or to dissuade them
from pulling their investments out of the facility.

IL. OCALA FUNDING

3. In or about January 2005, TBW cstablished a wholly-owned special purposc entity
called Ocala Funding. Ocala Funding was a bankruptcy-remote facility designed to provide TBW
additional funding for mortgage loans. The facility obtained funds for mortgage lending from the
sale of assel-backed commercial paper to investors.

4, Ocala Funding was managed by TBW and had no cmployecs of its own,
DE ARMAS had accounting responsibility for TBW and Ocala Funding. DE ARMAS knew and
understood that Ocala Funding was a bankruptcy remote facility and that its asscts, including
morigage loans and cash, had to be greater than or equal to its habilities, including outstanding
commocrcial paper held by investors and a relatuvely small amount of subordinated debt.

5. Shortly after Ocala Funding was established, DE ARMAS was told by a co-
conspirator that thcre was a shortage of asscts in Ocala Funding and that by in or around
Seplember 2006, the collateral deficit had grown to about $150 milhion. By September 2007 the
deficit had grown to about $500 million, and by Junc 2008 the deficit had grown to over $700
million. As DE ARMAS knew, these collateral deficits were misrepresented in Ocala Funding’s
financial statements and, as a result, in TBW’s financial statements as well,

6. DE ARMAS was told by Sean Ragland and others that cash from Ocala Funding
was being uscd by TBW for purposcs unrclated to Ocala Funding.

7. DE ARMAS knew that, as part of the effort 1o cover up the collateral shortfall and

to mislcad investors, Scan Ragland, who rcported to DE ARMAS, produced reports that



conccaled the shortfall in Ocala Funding. DE ARMAS kncw, both from discussions with co-
conspirators and via the receipt of emails, that these materially misleading reports were sent to
Ocala Funding investors and to other third partics. DE ARMAS madc no cffort to objcct to, or
correct, these reports even though he knew that the books of Ocala Funding and TBW did not
adcquately support the information given to these third partics.,

8. DE ARMAS and Paul Allen also created a false explanation for the deficil in
Ocala Funding’s collatcral. DE ARMAS and co-conspirators uscd the terms “loans in transit” or
“Iintercompany receivable,” among others, to explain 1o investors and regulators that there was no
collateral shortfall in Ocala Funding, when in fact DE ARMAS knew there was a shortfall.

9. On or about June 30, 2008, TBW restructured the Ocala Funding facility. The new
facility consisted of two investors, Deutsche Bank and BNP Paribas, and was capped at $1.75
billion. Al that time, Ocatla Funding had a collateral deficit of approximately S700 million.
DE ARMAS undcrstood that cash from the new investors was to be uscd to pay down
commercial paper investors in the old facility.

10. In or about latc 2008, DE ARMAS Icarncd that Farkas had dirccted Scan Ragland
who reported to DE ARMAS to delay making any pay-downs of Ocala Funding loans. DE
ARMAS dcscribed this process to Ragland as “FIFQ” in an cffort to mask the collateral shortfall
and avoid the potential consequences of detection, and DE ARMAS made no effort 1o object Lo or
corrcet Farkas® dircetions to Ragland.

11. At or about the time that TBW ceased operations in August 2009, Ocala Funding
had outstanding commcreial paper of approximatcly $1.7 billion. DE ARMAS was told by Paul
Allen shortly thereafter that Ocala Funding had less than S200 million in collateral.

12, As a result of the Ocala Funding fraud scheme, Freddic Mac, Colonial Bank, and



the Ocala Funding investors belicved they had an undivided owncership interest in thousands of
the same mortgage loans.

13. DE ARMAS did not personally rcecive any funds misappropriated from Ocala
Funding or otherwise benefit from the fraud scheme, though he did receive salary and perquisites
associated with his work at TBW gencrally.,

III. MSR VALUATIONS

14, TBW uscd its mortgage scrvicing rights (MSRs) to collatcralize a working capital
line of credit at Colonial Bank. In order to ensure that the MSRs were sufficient to collateralize
thec working capital linc, TBW rctained third-party companics to conduct periodic MSR
valuations.

15, On a number of occasions, the MSRs were not sufficient and DE ARMAS, Farkas,
and other co-conspirators changed the morigage loan data in order to inflate the MSR valuations
specifically to avoid a margin call. Other co-conspirators then provided the inflated valuation and
borrowing base to third parties in order to meet the necessary collateral thresholds.

V. FALSE TBW FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. In or about the spring of 2008, DE ARMAS directed Sean Ragland to matenally
inflatc, without proper substantiation, a loan participation rcecivable on the books of TBW. The
eftect of this “plug” was to substantially and materially increase the assets TBW allegedly owned.
DE ARMAS knew the reecivable figure was falsc and not supported by documentation at TBW.,
DE ARMAS later learned that Catherine Kissick of Colonial Bank had confirmed the “plug”
figurc as accuratc in conncction with TBW’s audit procedurcs.

17. DE ARMAS knew that TBW provided materially intlated tinancial statements

containing the falsified loan participation rcceivable to Ginnie Mac and Freddic Mac for purposcs
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of rencwing TBW’s authority to scll and service sceuritics guaranteed by Ginnic Mac and Freddic
Mac. DE ARMAS also knew that the materially inflated financial statements were provided to
Colonial Bank and other banks.

18. In or about mid-2008, DE ARMAS knowingly caused TBW to send matenally
inflatcd financial statcments to Ginnie Mac and Freddic Mac, which were transmitted through the
Eastern District of Virgimma. DE ARMAS knew that the financial statements were materally
inflatcd because, among other things, an ¢ntry in the financial statements refleeted the loan
participation receivable that had been materially inflated at DE ARMAS’s direction.

V. FALSE STATEMENTS TO HUD

19. Pursuant to applicable Guaranty Agreements between TBW and Ginnie Mae,
TBW was required to submit to Ginnic Mac, a wholly-owncd government corporation within the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, by June 30, 2009, audited financial
statcments for TBW's fiscal year ending on March 31, 2009.

20. In or about mid-June 2009, TBW’s independent auditor, Deloitie LLP (Deloille),
notificd certain cxecutives at TBW that Deloitte had scrious concerns about certain debt
transactions between TBW and Colonial Bank. Deloitte also recommended that TBW retain
outsidc counscl to conduct an indcpendent investigation into the matter. On or around Junc 19,
2009, TBW retained the law firm of Troutman Sanders LLP (Troutman) to investigate the issues
raiscd by Dcloitte.

21. DE ARMAS reviewed and edited a letter that was sent to Ginnie Mae by Paul
Allen on or about July 6, 2009. The letter attributed TBW’s delay in submitting audited financial
statements to Ginnie Mae to TBW’s swilch to a compressed 1l-month fiscal year, TBW’s

acquisition of Platinum Bancsharcs, Inc., and TBW’s planned cquity investment in Colonial



BancGroup. DE ARMAS and Allen knowingly and intentionally omitted disclosing in the letter
the material facts that: (1) Deloitte had raised concerns about the propriety of the financing
rclationship between TBW and Colonial; and (2) TBW, at Dcloitte’™s request, had retained
Troutman to conduct an mvestigation into the matter.
VI. CONCLUSION
22. DE ARMAS adimits that this statement of facts does not represent and is not
intecnded to represent an cxhaustive factual recitation of all the facts about which he has
knowledge relating to the scheme to defraud described hereim.
23, DE ARMAS admits that his actions, as recounted herein, were in all respects
intentional and deliberate, reflecting an intention 1o do something the law forbids, and were not in

any way thc product of any accident or mistake of law or fact.

Denis J. Mclncrney
Chief, Criminat Division, Fraud Section
United States Department of Justice

By:
Patrick F. Stokes, Deputy Chiet’
Robert Zink, Trial Attorney
Ncil 11, MacBride
United States Attorney

By:

Charles F. Connolly
Paul J. Nathanson
Asststant United States Attorncys



After consulting with my attorncy and pursuant to the plea agreement entered into this
day between the defendant, DELTON DE ARMAS, and the United States, I hereby stipulate that
the above Statcment of Facts 1s truc and accurate to the best of my knowledge, and that had the
matter proceeded 1o trial, the United States would have proved the same beyond a reasonable
doubt.

Date:

Delton de Armas, Defendant

I am DELTON DE ARMAS’s attorncy. | have carcfully reviewced the above Statement
of Facts with him. To my knowledge, lns decision to stipulate to these facls is an informed and
voluntary onc.

Dalte:

Drew Carroll, Esq.,
Counsel for the Defendant
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From: Acevedo, Olga </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT yCN=RECIPIENTS/CN=8BE7806771E6 A4AQ0BDCASECA7EEH4AB1-0OLGA
ACEVED>

To: "Conlan, Paul </o=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=bbh38913146504¢409ec 13165 7444fceb-Paul Conlon>"

S.u.hj!act;...EW:.._TI'.BW...E.OIA...-....ERO

Date: 2014/12/17 15:51:40
Priority: Normal
Type: Note

Paul = the PWD to open files will Tollow

Olga . Acevedo., Speaial Agent in Charge
FHIA OIG

100 77 Streer SW

Washington DC 20021

S
Coll (bX7)HC)

(b)7HC)

From| (®)7)C)
Sent: Wednesday, December 17, 2014 2:49 PM
To: Acevedo, Olga

Subject: TBW FOIA

Olga,

Attached arc the emails and documents [ have relating to TBW,

[ ®&@© |

Spccial Agent

Office of Investigation

FHF A Office of Inspector General

Office
b7 C
Ccell; (X7NC)

NON PUBLIC - RESTRICTED

Sender: Acevedo, Olga <fO=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/{CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=8E7806771E6 A4AQ0BDCA4SECA75864A81-OLGA
ACEVED=>
Recipient: "Conlon, Paul <fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=bbh38913146504¢409ec 13165 7444fceb-Paul Conlon>"

Sent Date: 2014/12/17 15:51:17



Deliveraed Date: 2014/12/17 15:51:40



From: Acevedo, Olga </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT /CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=8BE7806771E6 A4AQ0BDCASECA7EEH4AB1-0LGA
ACEVED>

To: "Conlan, Paul </o=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)}/cn=Recipients/cn=bb38913146504¢409ec 13165 7444fceb-Paul Conlon>"

Subject: FW: FOIA - PWD
Date: 2014/12/17 16:16:31
Priority: Normal
Type: Note

THW pwd - SE BELOW

Olga E. Acevedo., Speaial Agent in Charge
FHEA OIG

100 77 Streer SW

Washington DC 20021

Ofhe BYTC)

Cell
BYTNC)

From{ (b)7)(C) |

Sent: Wednesday, December 17, 2014 2:49 PM
To: Acevedo, Olga
Subject: FOIA

Password] (bX7XE)

(b)7)C)

Special Agent
Office of Investigation
FHFA Office of Inspector Gengral

Officag BY7Y(C
Cel:{ @O

NON PUBLIC - RESTRICTED

Sender: Acevedo, Olga </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=8E7806771E6A4ADDBDCASECA75864A81-0LGA
ACEVED>

Recipient: "Conlon, Paul <fo=FExchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT }/cn=Recipients/cn=bb38913146504c409ec13165 7444fceb-Paul Conlon>"

Sent Date: 2014/12/17 16:16:28
Delivered Date: 2014/12/17 16:16:31



(BY(THC )

(DY THE)

From:

To:

cC:

Emerzian, Peter </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/{CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=E5F50330FF35406FOFB12C708E955AEB-PETER
EMERZ >

"Sharpley, Christopher <f0=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT )/{CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=C5debh774f89403885¢42315¢2e%d19-
Christopher>";

"Stephens, Michael <fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT }/cn=Recipients/cn=2da0367840de4f2c8c5ac1 68562ab556-Michael Stex>";
"Linick, Stave </0=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/{CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=28c2cf 75297 49f09f7ceff9f7 1a 1cd9-Steve Linic>";
"DiSanto, Emilia </QO=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=D94£39648¢304¢1d8447667da03493ch-Emilia
DiSax="

(LU XC) <fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT }/cn=Recipients/cn=7263601007844fa4870348b5440c05f_(DI(A)(C) |
"Mowery, Timothy <fo=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT )/cn=Recipients/cn=7feclffdebf94414bbfoc37ef93f366e-Timothy Mow>"

Subject: FW: De Armas Plea Docs

Date: 2012/02/15 09:03:36

Priority: Normal

Type: Note

Attached are is a copy of the plea agreements and the statement of facts tor Delton De
Armas, TBwW CFQ.

They good te me, hut let me know 1 vou have any comments. Patrick wants to finalize
today and take the plea on Feb 27th

From: Stokes, Patrick [mailto:Patrick.Stokes2@usdoj.gov]

ry 13, 2012 12:2
Emerzian, Peter

(b)7)(C)

0'Shea, Nancy

Cc: Connally, Charles (USA\?AE); Nathanson, Paul (USAVAE); Zink, Robart
Subject: De Armas Plea Docs
Folks — De Armas has finally signed off on the plea agreement. Plcase take a look at the

proposed agreement and statement of facts, and let f :
"""""" chariges,-Michaely—  |has previously asked that (b)(5) |

(b)5) |As dc Armas

wasn’'t involved in thc| (b)(5) | (b)(5) I\Nc’]l shoot
around a criminal informalion when we have one.

De Armas’s lawyer has proposed scheduling the plea for 2/27, which 1s a Monday.
We’re shooting for that date, though we’ve not scttled on it yet or scheduled it with the

ow if that day is a problem for you for any reason. ®N7)
_______ Also; Ldon*thavel - hew email address, so please forward this to him. And| "¢y

I’m not sure who send this to at HUD OIG now, so I’m sending it to you.

judge. Letus kn

Thanks.
Patrick




Corfidentiality Notice: The informatior cortaired in this e-mail and
any

attachrerts rav pe confidertial or privileged under applicabhle law, or
ctherwise

may e prolacled from disclosure Lo anyore olher Lhan bLhe intended
recipient(s).

Any use, disLribulion, or cooying of Lhis e-mail, including any of its
cortents

or allachkmenls by any oerson olher Lhar Lhe inlernded recipient, or for
any

curpose olher Lhan ilLs intended use, is sbLriclly prohibited. Tf you
pelieve you

have received Lhis e-mail in error: cermanenlly delele Lhe e-mail and
any

allacnrertis, and o rol save, coopy, disclose, or rely on any part of
the

information contained in this c-mall or 1ts attacaments. Zleasce call
202-649-3800 if you have guestions.

Sender: Emerzian, Peter </0=EXCHANGELABS/QOU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT}/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=ESF50330FF35406FOFBI2C708E959AEB-PETER
EMERZ >

Recipient: "Sharpley, Christopher </0=EXCHANGELABS/QU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GRDUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT }/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=C5de5h774f89403889¢c42315¢2e9ad19-
Christopher:=";

"Stephens, Michael <fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=2da0367840de4f2cBc5ac168562ab556-Michael Ste>";
"Linick, Steve </D=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP

{FYDIBOHF235PDLT }{CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=28c2cf 752974905 7ceff9f7 1a 1cd9-Steve Linic>";
"DiSanto, Emilia </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=D94£39648¢304¢c1d8447667da03493ch-Emilia
DiSax>";

| ()7 )}(C) Jto=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT }/cn=Recipients/cn = 7263601007844fa4870348b5440c05¢]  (B}7)C)
"Mowery, Timothy </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=7fee0ffdebf94414bbfec37 ef93f266e-Timothy Mow:>"

Sent Date: 2012/02/15 09:03:34
Delivered Date: 2012/02/15 09:03:36




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



From: Stokes, Patrick <Patrick. Stokes2@usdoj.gov>
To:l (B} 7NHC)  |</o=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT )/cn=Recipients/cn=7263601007844fa487034805440c05F] (b)(7)(C)

"Charles.Connolly@usda]. gov";
"Paul.Nathanson@usdoj. gov”

Subject: Re: De Armas Plea Docs
Date: 2012/02/22 16:03:27
Priority: Normal

Type: Note

No plea scheduled vet. We're hoping for 2/27, but that looks unlikely. Will keep you posted.

Froml (bY7)C) |

Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2012 03:58 PM

To: Charles.Connollyigusdoj.gov <CConnollyi@usa.doj.gov>; Paul. Nathanson(éusdoj.gov
<pnathansondiusa.doj.gov>; Stokes, Patrick

Subject: RE: De Armas Plea Docs

Fley guys,

I just started at FHEA OFG and here 1s my new contact imformation. | hope vou guys arc
doing well. Can yvou include me on the emails as I'm (rying (o keep HUD OIG Tampa n
e has transferred to another location and Tim Mowery 1s also at FHFA
now). 11as DD plea been scheduled yet? Thanks.
| (bX7)C) |

Spectal Agenl

Fedceral ITousing Finance Ageney- OIG

ostios s Division
| (b)(7)C)

From: Emcrzian, Peler
Sent: Wednesday, February 15, 2012 9:04 AM

To']_Sham,meml‘r; Stephens,Michacl; Linick. Sieve; DiSanto, Emilia

Ce (bH7HC) Mowery, Timothy

Subject: FW: De Armas Plea Docs

Attached are 1s @ copy of the plea agreements and the statement ol [acts for Delton De
Armas, TBW CFQ).

They cood to me, but let me know if you have any comments, Patniclc wants to finalize
today and take the plea on Feb 27th

From: Stokes, Patrick [mailto:Patrick. Stakes2 g usdo). gov]

Sent: Monday, February 13, 2012 12:25 PM
To: | (5 )( 7 )(l :) |3‘ Emerzian, Peter WKL) H (BU7HC) |
| (B HC) O'Shea, Nancy

Ce: Connolly, Charles (US/—‘:VAE); Nathanson, Paul (USAVAE); Zink, Robert

Subject: De Armas Plea Docs

Folks — De Armas has finally signed off on the plea agreement. Please take a look at the
proposed agreement and statement of facts, and let us know if you have any suggested

®)THEY

(bYTHCY— as previously asked | (b)S) |
(b)(5) _ As de Armas
wasn’tinvolvedinth  (b)(5) (b)(5) | We'll shoot

around a criminal information when we have ong.



Dec Armas’s lawyer has proposed scheduling the plea for 2/27, which 1s a Monday.
We’re shooting for that date, though we’ve not settled on it yet or scheduled it with the
judge. Let us know if that day 1s a problem for you for any reason.

(BYTHC)—— ,9’&].50,....1 ..... don-f--t---havencw cmail address, so plcatsc fOI’W?I‘d ‘Fhis to him. And[®)7)(C) ]
I’m not surc who scnd this to at HUD OIG now, so I’'m sending it to you.
Thanks.
Patrick

Corfidentiality Notice: The informatior cortaired in this e-mail and
any

attachrerts rav pe confidertial gr privileged under applicabhle law, or
ctherwise

rav pe protected from disclosure te anvore other than the iatended
reciglient{s).

Anv use, dilstribhutior, or cooying ¢f this e-wail, iacluding any of its
contents

or allachkmenls by any oerson olher Lhar Lhe inlernded recipient, or for
any

curpose olher Lhan ils intended use, is sbLriclLly prohibited. Tf you
pelieve you

have received Lhis e-mail in error: cermanenlly delele Lhe e-mail and
any

allacnrerts, and o rol save, coopy, disclose, or rely on aony part of
the

informatiorn corftaired (n Lhis e-rail or iLs allachrerls. Please call
202-649-3300 1f you have guestions.

Confidentiality Notice: The information in this ecmail and any attachments may be
confidential or privileged under applicable law, or otherwise protected from disclosure to
anyone other than the intended recipient(s). Any use, distribution, or copying of this e-
mail, including any of its contents or attachments by any person other than the intended
recipicnt, or for any purposc other than its intended usc, is strictly prohibited. If you
believe you received this e-mail in error, please permanently delete it and any
attachments, and do not save, copy, disclose, or rely on any part of the information.
Please call the OlG at 202-730-4949 if you have any questions or to let us know you
received this cmail in crror.

Sender: Stokes, Patrick <Patrick. Stokes2{@usdoj.gov:>

Recipient: "Mosakowski, David </o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT )/cn=Recipients/cn=7263601007844fa4870348b5440c05ff -David Mosak>";
"Charles.Connolly@usdoj.gov”;

"Paul.Nathanson@usdoj.gov”

Sent Date: 2012/02/22 16:03:15



Deliveraed Date: 2012/02/22 16:03:27



(B THC)

From: Antonik, Malinda <MAntonik@hudoig.gov>

To:|  (B)(7)(C)  |</o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

{FYDIBORF235PDLT J/cn=Recipients/cn =7263601007844f2487034805440c05  (b)(7)(C)

ccy

(b)7)C)

Subject: RE: De Armas Plea Docs
Date: 2012/02/22 16:54:47

Priority:
Type:

Narmal
Note

Thanks for keeping me posted!

Malinda

From

(b)7)(C)

Sent: WEINSSAAy, FemTuaTy 22, 2012 U5 PV

Tao: Antonik, Malinda
Subject: ['W: Dc Ammas Plea Docs

Malinda.

Here are the drall plea docs [or Delton De Armas. the former TBW CFO {notice the

HUD language). The attorneys were hoping for a 2/27 plea hiearing but that scems

unlikely. Twill forward you emails as they come to me.

Thanks](B)}7)(

From: Emcrzian, Peler
Sent: Wednesday, February 15, 2012 9:04 AM

To Shamley Chrsionh

Ce (b)7)C)

°r; Stephens,Michacl; Linick. Sieve; DiSanto, Enilia
Mow

ery, Timothy

Subject: FW: De Armas Plea Docs
Auached arc 15 a copy of the plea agreements and the statement of Tacts for Delton De

Armas, TBW CF(

).

They cood to me, hut let me know if you have any comments, Patiick wants to finalize
today and take the plea on Feb 27th
From: Stokes, Patrick |mailto:Patrick.Stokes2{usdoj.gov]

Sent: ] r
To

(b)7)C) ;

y 13,2012 12:25 PM
. Emerzian, Peter; 15 H ; H C) ” (bY7)C) |

[ (B)(/){C) [OShea, Nancy

Cc: Connolly, Charles (

Subject: De Armas Plea Docs
Folks — Dc Armas has finally signed off on the plea agreement. Pleasc take a look at the
proposed agreement and statement of facts, and let us know if you have any suggested

..... changes..-Michael

USAVAFE); Nathanson, Paul (USAVAE): Zink, Robert

as previously asked | (L)3)

(b)(5) [ As de Armas

wasn’t invelved in thd

A (b)(5)
info (b)(5) ¢ have one.

around a criminal

| We'll shoot

De Armas’s lawyer has proposed scheduling the plea for 2/27, which is a Monday.
We're shooting for that date, though we’ve not settled on it yet or scheduled it with the
judge. Lct us know if that day 1s a problem for you for any rcason.

Also, I don’t havyg

(b)7)(C)

cw cmait address, so please forward this to him. And

(b)7)C)

I’m not sure who send this to at HUD OIG now, so I’'m sending it to you.

Thanks.




Patrick

Conrfidentiality Notice: The information cortainred in this c-mall and
any

attacarenrts may pe confidertial cr privileged under applicable law, or
alherwise

ray pe protectea from disclosure tc anyore otaer than the intencea
recicienl{s].

Any use, alstribution, or cogpying cof this e-mail, incluging any of its
conlenls

or attachments by any perscn otaer thar the interceg recipient, cor for
any

purpcse cther than its irtended use, 13 strictly prohibited, If you
oelieve you

have received this e-mail in errcr: permanently delete the e-mail and
any

attacarerts, ara ac rot save, copy, disclose, cor rely cn any part of
the

informatior corntaired in this e-mail or its attacamrents. Zlease call
202-649-3800 1[0 you have auesliors.

Confidentiality Notice: The information in this email and any atlachments may be
confidential or privileged under applicable law, or otherwise protected from disclosure to
anyonc other than the intended recipient(s). Any usc, distribution, or copying of this ¢~
mail, including any of its contents or attachments by any person other than the intended
recipient, or for any purpose other than its intended use, is strictly prohibited. If you
believe you received this e-mail in error, please permanently delete it and any
attachments, and do not save, copy, disclosc, or rcly on any part of the information.
Please call the OIG at 202-730-4949 if you have any questions or to let us know you
received this email in error,

Sender: Antonik, Malinda <MAntonik@hudoig.gov>

Recipient: "Mosakowski, David </o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT }/cn=Recipients/cn=7263601007344fa4870348b5440c05ff-David Mosak>";

| (R HC) |
Sent Date: 2012/02/22 16:54:40

Delivered Date: 2012/02/22 16:54:47




From: Connolly, Charles {USAVAE) <Charles.Connolly@usdoj.gov>

To: "Stokes, Patrick (CRM) <Patrick.Stokes2@usdoj.gov>",
"Emerzian, Peter <fO=EXCHANGELABS/QU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT )/{CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=E5f50330ff35406f5fh12¢708e95%eb-Peter
Emerz>";
"0'Shea, Nancy </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROQUP
(FYDI BOH F23SPDLT)CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=45ad7effd1 2adbeeb3he31b646ccO0d-Nancy
. )

(b)(?)(C) ExchangeLabsfou Exchange Administrative Group
TVcn=Recipients/cn=b05df298ecadd835a4689fbfa23232fq (b} 7)(C)
BX7)C) o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

TFYDIBOHF 235PDLT )cn=Recipients/cn=7263601007844fa4870348b5440c056 (D)(7)(C)

CC: "Zink, Robert {CRM) <Robert.Zink@usdoj.gov>";
"Nathanson, Paul {USAVAE) <Paul.Nathanson@usdoj.gov>"

Subject: RE: For Sale: $30.8 Billion of TBW MSRs
Date: 2012/06/11 14:56:08
Priority: Normal

Type: Note

All Reminder that Delton de Armas’s sentencing is Friday. Attached is the position
paper we filed. | (b)(5) [The Defense asked for a sentence equal to what
Ragland reccived.

Chuck

Fram: Stokes, Patrick [mailto:Patrick. Stokes2(gusdoj.gov]

Sent: Thursday, Junc 07, 2012 8:18 AM

To: 'Peicr. Emerzianig [htaoig.gov'; Connolly, Charles {USAV AE); 'nancy.osheaggthlaoig.gov';

I (BY7)(C) |

Subject: Re: For Sale: 530.8 Billion of TBW MSRs

| (b)(5) |

From: Emerzian, Peter [mailto:Peter. Emerzian(@ithfasig. gov]
Sent; Thursday, lune 07, 2012 08:07 AM

To: Stokes, Patrick; Connolly, Charles {Charleg = CC
'Shea, Nancy <Nancyv,OSheaithfaoig zov (LXITHC)
| (BI7HC) |
Subject: For Sale: $30.% Billion of TBW MSRs

-

FYI

For Sale: $30.8 Billion of TBW MSRs

Paul Muolo

National Mortgage News

Wed, 06 Jun 2012 18:53:17 GMT

148 words

Milestone Merchant Partners is circulating an oftering book on $30.8 billion of mortgage
servicing rights that once belonged to now-defunct Taylor, Bean & Whitaker, Ocala, Fla
Servicing investors and advisors familiar with the deal said the MSRs are tied to
morigages guaranieed by Freddie Mac. The receivables have a 12% delinquency rate,
said one source wlo has seen the offertng book.

TBW’s asscts arc being supervised by a bankruptey trustee.,



Ocwen Financial and other specialty servicers arc expected to be the target audience of
the bid package.

The nonbank lender filed for bankruplcy protection almost three years ago. A year ago 1s
longtime CEO, Lce Farkas, was scntenced to 30 years in prison for orchestrating a
massive fraud tied to fabricating mortgage asscts that didn’t exist. It then borrowed
money against those nonexistent assets.

TBW’s failure also sparked the failure of its largest warehouse provider, Colonial Bank.

= |

Description: Peter

Emcrzian AIGI Signature-2
Confidentiality Notice: The information in this ecmail and any attachments may be
confidential or privileged under applicable law, or otherwise protected from disclosure to
anyone other than the intended recipient(s). Any use, distribution, or copymg of this
cmail, including any of its contents or attachments by any pcrson other than the intended
recipient, or for any purposc other than its intended use, is strictly prohibited. If you
believe you received this email in error, please permanently delete it and any
attachments, and do not save, copy, disclose, or rely on any part of the mformation.
Plcasc call the OIG at 202-730-4949 if you have any qucstions or to let us know you
reccived this cmail in crror.

Sender: Connolly, Charles (USAVAE) <Charles.Connolly@usdoj.gov:>

Recipient: "Stokes, Patrick {(CRM) <Patrick.Stokes2@usdoj.gov>";

"Emerzian, Peter </0=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GRDUP
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT )/ CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=E5f50330ff35406f%fb12c708e959aeb-Peter
Emerz=";

"O'Shea, Nancy </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT ) CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=45ad 7effd 12adbeeb3be3 1b646cct0d6-Nancy

(BY7XC) p=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
i~ Recipients/cn=b05df298eca94835a4689fhfa23232f81 (b)7)(C)
(LU7HC) |
bY7)(C fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
/cn=Recipients/cn=7263601007844fa4870348b5440c05t]  (B}7)HC)
"Zink, Robert {CRM) <Robert.Zinkd@usdoj. gov=";
"Nathanson, Paul {USAVAE) <Paul.Nathanson@usdoj.gov>"
Sent Date: 2012/06/11 14:55:54
Delivered Date: 2012/06/11 14:56:08
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
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=E5F50330FF35406FOFB12C708E959AEB-PETER
EMERZ >

To: "Mowery, Timaothy </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)fcn=Recipients/cn=7feelffdebf94414bbfoc37ef93f366e-Timathy Mow>";

(BYTNC) o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

L-mmmwtn:Recipientsfcn:7263601007844fa4870348b5440c05

b 73(C) | </e=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

....- PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=h05df298ecad4835a4689fbfa23232q (BI(7NHC) |
<fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

(b)7)(C)
B PDLT)/cn=Recipients/en=50d58ee05939474b82b218a6add276e] (B} 7)(C)

Subject: TBW White Paper
Date: 2014/08/08 13:40:26

Priority: Normal

Type: Note

Tinl (b)7)C) |

Mike Najjum and [ worked a White Paper relating to TBW.
I"d appreciate any comments you have.

Thanks

Pcter

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
other than its intended use. is strictly prohibited. If you believe you have received
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
{(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN =E5F50330FF35406FOFBI 2C708E959AEB-PETER
EMERZ >

Recipient: "Mowery, Timothy </0=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=7feelffdebf94414bbf6c37ef93f366e-Timoathy Mows";
! bW 7WC fo=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
YDIBORFZISPITT)cn=Recipients/cn=7263601007844fa4870348b5440c05___(BI(7)(C) |

(BY7XHC) xchangeLabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group




fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
LT)/cn=Recipients/cn=50d58ee05939474b82b218a6add276e7{ (b){7)(C)

Sent Date: 2014/08/08 13:40:19
Delivered Date: 2014/08/08 13:40:26

ﬁgﬁ: LT)/cn=Recipients/cn=b05df298eca94835a4689fbfa23232f8- (B} 7)(C)
(BY}7)C) E



From: Mowery, Timothy </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/ CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=7FEEQOFFDEBF94414BBFGC3I7EFIZF366E-TIMOTHY
MOW >

To: "Emerzian, Peter <fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT ) cn=Recipients/cn=e5f50330ff3 5406f3fb12c708e050aebh-Peter Emerz>";
"Davis, Lester A, <LDavis@hudoig.gov>";

"Febles, Rene </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

{FYDIBOHF235PDLTY/cn=Recipients/cn=4dcab12235064540ac7ad51bfe748bcf-Rene Febles>"
ccC: (B)T)C) k/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT),»’cn=Recipl'ents,»’cn=7263601007844fa4870348b5440c05f‘f'
Subject: RE: Litigatin hold for Deloitte
Date: 2014/09/08 11:05:04
Priority: Normal
Type: Note

Evil (B)7)E) I

| (LYT)E)

(BU7HC)
Sent: Monday, September 08, 2014 10:58 AM
To: Davis, L r A.; Febles, Rene
ccl (LITHC) Mowery, Timothy
Subject: RE: Litigatin hold for Deloitte
I copied them on IIJirT cmail
Timl__ &7 XC)
crl__®@©C) |
Davel  ®@NC) |

(_Z‘Pl (bY7)C) |

> |

cid:image001.png@01CFC125.59C8B430

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



From: Davis, Lester A. [mailto:LDavis@hudoig.gov]

Sent: Monday, September 08, 2014 10:48 AM

To: Emerzian, Peter; Febles, Rene

Subject: FW: Litigatin hold for Deloitte
....... Can someone provide Tim-andf-—- ~ontact info so Bryan Howell can provide them

(b)(3)

(b)(?) (C) .........................

From: Howell, Bryan

Sent: Monday, Scptember 08, 2014 07:53 AM Eastern Standard Time
To: Davis, Lester A.

Subject: RE: Litigatin hold for Deloitte

Yes, please Lester. Thanks.
Bryan Howell
HUD/OIG OL.C

| (b)T)C)
rom: Davis, Lester A,

Sent: Friday, September 05, 2014 5:02 PM

To: Howell, Bryan
Subject: RE: Litigatin hold for Deloitte

Bryan, N
The two Tamnpa aoenis that worked on the ease both now work lor FLHIFA \

but it you need their names and current contact into [ can get that for you.

From: Howell, Bryan
Sent: Friday, September 05, 2014 8:09 AM
To: Clarke, Joseph; Davis, Lester A.; McGinnis, Randy W.; Buck, John; Randall, Kimberly;

Powell, Michael

Cc: Kirkland, Jeremy;

Subject: Litigatin hold for Deloitte
Gooad Moming All

(b)(3)

(b)) [ (BYT)O)|[ b))

(b)(3)




If you could get me the names carly next week [ would greatly appreciate it. Any
questions feel free to call or come by and ask.

Thanks.

J. Bryan Howell

Assoclate Counscl

HUD/OIG

451 7 St S W,
Washington, D.C 20401

(b)(7)(C) |Diree

Sender: Mowery, Timothy </0O=EXCHANGELABS/DU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=7FEEOFFDEBF944 14BBF6C37EF93F366E-TIMOTHY
MOW>

Recipient: "Emerzian, Peter </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT )/cn=Recipients/cn=e5f50330ff3 5406f5fb12c708e959aeb-Peter Emerz>";
"Davis, Lester A, <LDavis@hudoig.govy>";
"Febles, Rene </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

cn=Recipients/cn=4dca6 1 2235064540ac7ad5 Lbfe748bcf-Rene Febles>";
{BYW7HC) fo=ExchangelLabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group

cn=Recipients/cn=7263601007844fa4870348b5440c05f]  (b)(7)(C)

Sent Date: 2014/09/08 11:04:59
Delivered Date: 2014/09/08 11:05:04



Fron'l

(BUTHC) | </O=EXCHANGELABS/QU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROU

FYDIBOHFZISPOL T )/ CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=7263601007844FA4870348 B5440CO5FR

(b)7)(C)

To: oo, Pall < /o= Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

Subject:
Date:
Priority:
Type:

{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT )/cn=Recipients/cn=bb38913146504¢409ec131657444fceb-Paul Conlon>";
"Emerzian, Peter <fo=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
DIGOH PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=e5f50330ff35406f9fb 1 2c708e95%ach-Peter Emerz>";
(BY7)}C) |fo=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group

YDIBORFZ3SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=b05d298ecad4835a4689fbfa23232f8| (B)}7)C)

"Mowery, Timothy </o=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT )/cn=Recipients/cn=7fecffdebf94414bbf6c37ef93f366e-Timothy Mow>"

RE: TBW

2014/03/19 08:24:13
Normal

Note

(b))

T

Sent from my Windows Phone

From: Conlon, Paul

Sent: 3/15/2014 6:48 AM

To: Emerzian, Peter

(BYTHC) (BUTHC) Mowery, Timothy

Subject: TBW

BWTHC)

| open the WS) this morning to the money and investing section and there is a picture of Farkas

on his way to his ini

tial appearence.

The story is entitled "A prison Life: Ex-Banker Struggles”

p

Sent from my Windows Phone

Senderq

Recipient:

(bY7HC)  }/D=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROU

EYDTROHE? SSPDITY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=7263601007844FA4870348B5440C05FH

(b)7HC)

oo rr=ro=txchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

.......................... (b)(?)(C)

{FYDIBOHF235PDLT }/cn=Recipients/cn=bb389131406504c409ec 131657444fceb-Paul Conlon>";

"Emerzian, Peter </o=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=e5f50330ff35406f9fb12c708e95%aeh-Peter Emerz>";
o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

Pe—tl)

(b)7)(C)
@ﬁbPDLT){cmRecipientsfcn=b05df2983ca94835a4689fbf323232f8 (bY7)HC)

Sent Date:
Delivered Date:

"Mowery, Timothy </o=Exchangelabs/fou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=7fee0ffdebf94414bbfoc37 &f93f3662 -Timothy Mow>"

2014/03/19 08:24:11
2014/03/19 08:24:13



To: "Mowery, Timothy </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn="7feelffdebi4414bbfoc37ef93f366e-Timathy Mow>";
"Emerzian, Peter <fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

r‘“‘“‘%ﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁmﬂfanecipientsfcn:ESfSOBBOﬁB 5406f5fb12c708e05%eb-Peter Emerz>";
(b)7)C) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

EFYDIBOHF23SPDLT)fcn=Recipients,r‘cn=7263601007844fa4870348b5440c05 (B HC) |

=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=b05d298eca4835a4689fbfa23232f8 {7 XTI ]

Subject: RE: TBW White Paper
Date: 2014/08/11 14:56:24
Priority: Normal
Type: Note

(b)(5)

Sent from my Windows Phone
Non-Public Restricted

From: Mowery, Timothy

Sent: 8/11/2014 12:43 PM

To: Emerzian, Peter (BX7YC)
Subject: RE: TBW White Paper

(b)(5)

Thanks Tim

From: Emerzian, Peter

Sent: Monday, August 11, 2014 2:24 PM

To: Mowery, Timothy;| {(EX7)HC)
Subject: RE: TBW White Paper

Did you guys have a chance to read this? Any comments or input?

LAH7NHC)



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
from disclosure to anyone other than the intended recipient(s}. Any use, distribution, or
copying of this e-mail, including any of its contents or attachments by any person other

than the intended recipient, or for any purpose other than its intended use, is strictly
prohibited. If you believe you have received this e-mail in error, permanently delete the
e-mail and any attachments; and do not save, copy. disclose, or use any part of the
information contained therein. Call the sender if you have questions.

From: Emerzian, Peter

Sent: Friday, August 08, 2014 1:40 PM

To: Mowery, Tim (tmowery@hudoig.aov):] (bU7)C)
(BU7HC) |

Subject: [BW White Paper

Tim|  (B)7NHC)

Mike Najjum and | worked a White Paper relating to TBW.
I'd appreciate any comments you have.
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

(B)(7)C)

(b)7)C)

k0=EXCHANGELABS,-’OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
LT}/ CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=50D58 EE05939474BSZBZ18A6ADD276E7m

Recipient: "Mowery, Timothy </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

(FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=7feelffdebfa4414bbfoc37efe3f366e-Timothy Mow=";

"Emerzian, Peter </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
YDIBOHF23SPDLT)}/cn=Recipients/cn=e5f50330f25406f9fb12c708e95%aeb-Peter Emerz:>";

Sent Date: 2014/08/11 14:56:20

BTG

F
bY7)(C fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
, fcn=Recipients/cn=7263601007844fa487034805440c051 (P} 7)HC)

{o=Exchangelabsf{ou=Exchange Administrative Group

FYDIBOHF23

SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=b05df298ecad4835a4689fbfa23232f8- (b)(7)(C)

Delivered Date: 2014/08/11 14:56:24



From: Emerzian, Peter </0=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS5/CN=E5F50330FF35406FSFB12C708E959AEB-PETER
EMERZ >

To: "Mowery, Timothy </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/en=Recipients/cn="7feelffdebf9441 4bbftc37ef93f366e-Timothy Mow >"
Subject: RE: TBW White Paper
Date: 2014/08/13 13:13:53
Priority: Normal
Type: Note

Thanks Tim

—

Peter Emerzian New 5ig-DIG
Non-Public Restricted

Confidentiality Notice: The information contained in this e-mail and any attachments may be
confidential or privileged under applicable law, or otherwise may be protected from disclosure to
anyone other than the intended recipient(s). Any use, distribution, or copying of this e-mail,
ncluding any of its contents or attachments by any person other than the intended recipient, or
for any purpose other than its intended use, is strictly prohibited. If you believe you have
received this e-mail in error, permanently delete the e-mail and any attachments; and do not
save, copy, disclose, or use any part of the information contained therein. Call the sender if you
have questions.

From: Mowery, Timothy

Sent: Wednesday, August 13, 2014 11:25 AM
To: Emerzian, Peter

Subject: RE; TBW White Paper

FYI, | am scheduled to go to HUDOIG at 1pm to review their TBW file. Tim

From: Emerzian, Peter

Sent: Tuesday, August 12, 2014 11:55 AM
To: Mowery, Timothy

Subject: RE: TBW White Paper



Thanks Tim

—

Peter Emerzian New Sig-DIG
Non-Public Restricted

Confidentiality Notice: The information contained in this e-mail and any attachments may be
confidential or privieged under applicable law, or otherwise may be protected from disclosure to
anyone other than the intended recipient(s). Any use, distribution, or copying of this e-mail,
including any of its contents or attachments by any person other than the intended recipient, or
for any purpose other than its intended use, is strictly prohibited. If you believe you have
received this e-mail in error, permanently delete the e-mail and any attachments; and do not
save, copy, disclose, or use any part of the information contained therein. Call the sender if you
have guestions.

From: Mowery, Timothy

Sent: Tuesday, August 12, 2014 10:35 AM
To: Emerzian, Peter

Subject: RE: TBW White Paper

Yes, | will

From: Emerzian, Peter

Sent: Tuesday, August 12, 2014 9:20 AM
To: Mowery, Timothy

Subject: RE: TBW White Paper

Tim<
Any chance you could check to see if HUD has the disc
Thanks

peter



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

Sent: Monday, August 11, 2014 3:45 PM
To: Emerzian, Peter

Subject: RE: TBW White Paper

(bLY7)E)

\Tim

From: Emerzian, Peter

Sent: Monday, August 11, 2014 3:23 PM
To: Mowery, Timothy

Subject: RE: TBW White Paper

Any chance you could track the documentation down



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

Sent: Monday, August 11, 2014 3:21 PM
To: Emerzian, Peter

Subject: RE: TBW White Paper

| found it in the Fannie Mae Documents | reviewed. | couldn’t believe it. | remember sending a copy of
it to HUDOIG HQ at the time. | told everyone about it. It was buried in with various memo documents
and depositions that a FNMA had been requested to turnover. Colonial Bank/Kathy wrote a letter
telling Fannie Mae that a lot of their customers were Fannie Customers and basically any action Fannie
took against them would affect their bank and their customers. After that, There was a Non
Disclosure/Confedentiality Agreement signed by Farkas and Fannie, which specifically said neither party
could discuss the circumstances of the termination Fannie had with TBW. It was about a month later
when Farkas was in a Mortgage magazine telling the writer of the article that he decided to stop doing
business with Fannie Mae.

From: Emerzian, Peter

Sent: Monday, August 11, 2014 306 PM
To: Mowery, Timothy

Subject: RE: TBW White Paper

Tim,
How did we know that occurred?



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

Sent: Monday, August 11, 2014 2:43 P
To: Emerzian, Peter; BU7HC) I\H
Subject: RE: TBW WTtE Paper

(b)7HC)

(b)(5)

Thanks Tim

From: Emerzian, Peter

Sent: Monday, August 11, 2014 2:24 PM

To: Mowery, Timothy; (BYTHC)
Subject: RE: TBW Wihe Fape!

Did you guys have a chance to read this? Any commaents or input?




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

To: Mowery, Tim (tmowerv@hudoiq.qov);|

(b)7)C)

(LU7HC) |
Subject: TBW White Paper

Tim  ®@©) |

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
received this e-mail in error, permanently delete the e-mail and any attachments; and de not
save, copy, disclose, or use any part of the information contained therein. Call the sender if you
have questions.

Sender: Emerzian, Peter </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYCIBDHF235POLT}/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=E5F50330FF35406F9FB12C708E959AEB-PETER EMERZ >

Recipient: "Mowery, Timothy <fo=ExchangelLabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBDHF23SPOLT ) cn=Recipients{cn=7feelffdebf94414bbfec37ef93f366e-Timothy Mow:>"

Sent Date: 2014/08/13 13:13:51
Delivered Date: 2014/08/13 13:13:53



From: Mowery, Timothy </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=7FEEQFFDEBF94414BBF6CI7EFS3F366E-TIMOTHY
MOW >

To: "Emerzian, Peter <fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=e5f50330f35406f9fb12¢708e05%aeb-Peter Emerz>"

Subject: Fannie Mae Agreement with TBW
Date: 2014/08/13 14:45:59

Priority: Normal
Type: Note

Peter

Attached is one PDF containing two documents (8 pages in all}.

1. A One page copy of the Fannie Termination Letter to TBW

2. A Seven Page Agreement signed by VP Smith and Lee Farkas. SEE Paragraph #14 on
Page Six of the Agreement.

Timothy A. Mowery

Special Agent in Charge, Southeast Region
Office of Investigations

Federal Housing Finance Agency,

Office of Inspector General

Tampa, Florida

Worl
Cell: (bY(7)(C)

Sender: Mowery, Timothy </0=EXCHANGELABS/OQU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHFZ35PDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN="7FEEOFFDEBF94414BBF6C37EFS3F366E-TIMOTHY MOW:>

Recipient: "Emerzian, Peter <fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=e5f50330ff35406f0fh12c708e85%eb-Peter Emerz>"

Sent Date: 2014/08/13 14:46:47
Delivered Date: 2014/08/13 14:45:59



From:

To:

Subject:
Date:
Priority:
Type:

Mowery, Timothy </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
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

RE: TBW White Paper & American Banker
2014/08/28 17:50:42

Normal

Note

| know, | was the only one that kept bringing that up to Patrick. Anyway, U (b)(5)

(b)(S)

From: Emerzian, Peter

Sent: Thursday, August 28, 2014 5:30 PM

To: Mowery, Timothy

Subject: RE: TBW White Paper & American Banker

Thanks,| got your comment about the confident agreement in the report

Sent from my Windows Phone

From: Mowery, Timothy

Sent: 8/28/2014 5:13 PM
To: Emerzian, Peter (b)7)C)

Subject: RE: TBW White Paper & American Banker

(b)(S)

From: Emerzian, Peter

Sent: Tuesday, August 26, 2014 1:38 PM

To: Mowery, Timathy; (bX7YC)
Subject: TBW White Paper & American Banker

Hey Guys - FYI

Attached is the final TBW White Paper, which was turned into a SIR and released.

Also attached is the American Banker article on the report

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
anyone other than the intended recipient(s). Any use, distribution, ar copying of this e-mail,
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

Sender: Mowery, Timothy </Q=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GRQUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=7FEEOFFDEBF34414BBF6C37EF93F366E-TIMOTHY MOW:>

Recipient: "Emerzian, Peter <fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=e5f50330ff35406f9fb 1 2c7082959aeh-Peter Emerz:>"

Sent Date: 2014/08/28 17:50:49
Delivered Date: 2014/08/28 17:50:42



Non Responsive




From: Mowery, Timothy </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=7FEEQFFDEBF94414BBF6CI7EFS3F366E-TIMOTHY

MOW >

To:] (b)7)C) Jo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
OTEOHFZ35PT T);’cn=Recipientsfcn=803b10882bb64955a4c35cd96ef4b1Sm

(b)(TEY joct: KE
Date: 2014/11/03 16:43:28
Priority: Normal
Type: Note

Yeah, | had just wentinto yours and they looked okay. Now that | am looking a{ (b)(7)(C) (b)}(5) |
(b)3)

From{___ ®7NC) |
Sent: Monday, November 03, 2014 4:42 PM

To: Mowery, Timothy
Subject: RE: SCP

Non Responsive

[Non Responsive is| ®)7)C) kaseon[  ®TIC) |

From{ (B)7)XC) |
Sent: Monday, November 03, 2014 3:37 PM

To: Mowery, Timothy
Subject: RE: SCP

Non Responsive

Hey Tim:

Below are my cases:

_Non Responsive || Non Responsive The one
H(b)(?)(C)| Please let me know if you need anything else on my

I
| Non Responsive
end. Thanks

(b)7HC)

From: Mowery, Timothy
Sent: Monday, November 03, 2014 3:24 PM

Tor| (bX7)C)
Subject: FW: SCP

Please see the attached. So far as | know._only one nerson has ever had FHEA take action on them an
that was LEE FARKAS of the TBW case. Non Responsive

Non Responsive Thanks Tim




From: Febles, Rene
Sent: Monday, November 03, 2014 4:03 FM

Tob: Mowery, Timothy; Acevedo, Olga; Higgins, Mark
Subject: SCP

Team
Non Responsive
thanks
Rene-
DIG-1

Sender: Mowery, Timothy </0=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
FYDIBOHF235PDLTY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=7FEEOFFDEBF94414BBF6C37EFS3F366E-TIMOTHY MOW >
Recipient:_ Jo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT}/cn=Recipients/cn =803b10882bb64955adcas5cd96ef4b18d  (D)(7H(C)
Sent Date: 2014/11/03 16:43:31
Delivered Date: 2014/11/03 16:43:28



From: Mowery, Timothy </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT /CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=7FEEQOFFDEBF94414BBFGC3I7EFIZFI6GE-TIMOTHY
MOW >

To: (bY7HC) o=Exchangelabs/cu=Exchange Administrative Group
YDIBOH PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=ab7303bbbd1049658dfdf5d8fbO9677bl  (b)(7)(C)

Subject: FW: SCP
Date: 2014/11/04 09:09:21
Priority: Normal

Type: Note

)06 (6 i Non Res Non Respc.)nsive I " Non Responsive ........................................... ~BYTHC)
Non Responsive

SETTLTTAITTTITY WV ITTILAAW S FTTUTTE

From: Mowery, Timothy

Sent: 11/3/2014 4:23 PM

To] (BXTXC) |
Subject: FW: SCP

Please see the attached. So far as | know, only one person has ever had FHFA tal_<e action on
them and that was LEE FARKAS of the TBW case | Non Responsive
Non Responsive Thanks Tim

From: Febles, Rene

Sent: Monday, November 03, 2014 4:03 PM

To: Mowery, Timothy; Acevedo, Qlga; Higgins, Mark
Subject: SCP

Team

Non Responsive

thanks



Rene-DIG-1

Sender: Mowery, Timothy </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=7FEEQFFDEBF944 14BBF6C37EF93F366E-TIMOTHY
MOW>
Recipient (B)T)C) Jo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBCHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=ab?903bbbd 1049658dfdf5d8fb096774  (b)}{(7){C)

Sent Date: 2014/11/04 09:09:19
Delivered Date: 2014/11/04 09:09:21



mel (BY7)HC)  |«/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
JF235PDLT)/CN =RECIPIENTS/CN=AB7903BBBD1049658DFDF SD8FBO96 77— ],
|(b)(7)(fc —1 .

To: "Mowery, Timothy </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/en=Recipients/cn="7feelffdebf9441 4bbfoci7ef93f366e-Timothy Mow:>"

CC: "fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=1055f1at65al14cd7al b99737f8abbd88-1CMSSupport”

Subject: RE; SCP

Date: 2014/11/04 09:17:49
Priority: Normal

Type: Note

........... (b)(?)(C)

Thank you Tim!!!
| will take a look at it!!

Have a great day!

(b)7)}C) [New Bldg2

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

Sent: Tuesday, November 04, 2014 9:09 AM
To:| DO |

Subject: FW: SCP

(t;g)!) Non Responsive | DGE Non Responsive




Non Responsive

Sent from my Windows Phone

From: Mowery, Timothy

Sent: 11/3/2014 4:23 PV

To: { BX7)C) b
Subject: FW: SCP

Please see the attached. So far as | know, only one person has ever had FHFA take action on them and
that was LEE FARKAS of the TBW case. Non Responsive

. hanks 1
Non Responsive | 7'M

From: Febles, Rene

Sent: Monday, November 03, 2014 4:03 PM

Tp: Mowery, Timothy; Acevedo, Olga; Higgins, Mark
Subject: 5CP

Team
Non Responsive
thanks
Rene-
DIG-1

Sender: stewart, Randal </0=EXCHANGELABS/CU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GRQUP
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=AB7903BBBD1049658DFDF5D8FB0OS6 7 7B-RANOAL STEW >

Recipient: "Mowery, Timothy </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=7fee0ffdebf94414bbfec37ef93f366e-Timothy Mow:>";
"to=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF 235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=1055f 1a665a 14cd7a1b39737f8ab6d88-1CMS support”

Sent Date: 2014/11/04 09:17:46

Delivered Date: 2014/11/04 09:17:49



Non Responsive




Non Responsive

Page 2 of 2

Furm FHA-15 Suspend-Debar App




From 0=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE AOMINISTRATIVE GROUP
[FYDIBGH PDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=B8169C3529EA42309BEISOFGFSFII07Y (b)(7)(C)
(b)(7)

To: "Mowery, Timothy <fo=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=7fec0ffdebfo441 4bbfec37ef3f366e-Timothy Mow>"

CC: "Higgins, Mark </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHFZBSPDLT)fcn=Reci..:uientsfcn=2fa9e6dSaa544f79936b1d33eda574c8—Mark Higgin="

(b)(?) (C) .......................................

Date: 2014/11/12 11:25:07
Priority: Normal

Type: Note

Tim:

Non Responsive

(b)7HC) |

Special Agent

Federal Housing Finance Agency-OIG
0)
bY)7)(C (
(BUTHC) (C)

Non-Public Restricted

From: Mowery, Timothy

Sent: Monday, November 10, 2014 4:41 PM
To:| (b} (7)C)
Cc: Higgins, Mark
Subject: FW: Suspension / Disbarment - (?g{’

Vic
See the below. (b)(3) |, butitis my understanding FHFA has only
suspended one person which s LEE FARKAS [~
Non Responsive
Tim

From: Sullivan, Ronald

Sent: Monday, November 10, 2014 4:24 PM
To: Mowery, Timothy
Subject: FW: Suspension / Disbarment { (bX7)(C)

Non Responsive

From: Sullivan, Ronald

Sent: Thursday, October 24, 2013 6:07 PM
To: Conlon, Paul
Subject: Suspension / Disbarment { (b)}7)(C)




Non Responsive 1 ™| Non Responsive

Description: Description: cid:image002.png@01CCBO1B.44DsDFCO
Ron Sullivan
Special Agent
Federal Housing Finance Agency — QIG
Office of Investigations

[ oo ]

Sender] (B}7)C) }[/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
%SPDLTMCN=RECIPIENTS£CN=88169C3529EA423098E960F6F5F99072 {b)7HC)H

Recipient: "Mowery, Timothy </o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBDHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn="7feelffdebf9441 4bbfoc 37ef93f366e-Timothy Mow:>";
"Higgins, Mark </o=Exchangelabs/ocu=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=2fa%ebd5aa544f79936b 1d3aedab 74cB-Mark Higgin>"

Sent Date: 2014/11/12 11:25:02
Delivered Date: 2014/11/12 11:25:07
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